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LEONARD P. MONTELEONE SUPERINTENDENT 
November 17, 1997 

212 W. 17th AVENUE ~ POST OFFICE BOX 940 COVINGTON, L.OUISIANA 70434-0940 PHONE (504) 892~2276 - FAX (504) 898-3267 

The Members of the St. Tammany Parish School Board Covington, Louisiana: 

BOARD MEMBERS JOHN C LAMAROUE. PR[ SIb~ ~I DANIEL G ZECHE NE LLY, V;CF PRt ~,I[>E N~ NEAL M HENNEGAN EDDIE FIELDING AN. "SMITTY" SMITH GREGORY J SAURAGE CHARLES T HARREL L DONALO J VII LERE PA37" I YOUNG B E'Q'Y VE RZWYVE LT E ROTHALLEN, PHD, JAMES "IRONN IE" PANKS SF I ANTHONY "TON'I" TE DESCO RAYA ALFRED MARy K LYNCH 
The comprehensive annual financial report of the St. Tammany Parish School Board for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1997, is hereby submitted. Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data, and the completeness and fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the School Board. To the best of our knowledge and belief, the enclosed data are accurate in all material respects and are reported in a manner designed to present fairly the financial position and results of operations of the various funds and account groups of the School Board. All disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the School Board's financial activities have been included. The comprehensive annual financial report is presented in four sections: introductory, financial, statistical and single audit. The introductory section includes this transmittal letter, the Scl~ool Board's organizational chart and a list of principal officials. The financial section includes the general purpose financial statements and the combining and individual fund and account group financial statements and schedules, lhe statistical section includes selected financial and demographic information, generally presented on a multi-year basis. The School Beard is required to undergo an annual single audit in conformity with the provisions of the Single Audit Act and U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States. Local Governments. and Non-PK)fit Oraanizations. Information related to this single audit, including the schedule of federal financial assistance, findings and recommendations, and independent auditors' reports on the internal control structure and compliance with applicable laws and regulations, are included in the single audit section of this report. This report includes all funds, account groups and activities for which the School Board exercises financial acc, ountability. The School Board is a legislative body authorized to govern the public education system of St. Tammany Parish, Louisiana. The School System is governed by a fifteen-member board with each member serving a concurrent four year term. The current board is in the third year of its four-year term. It is the responsibility of the School Board to make public education available to the residents of St. rammany Parish, including instructional personnel, instructional facilities;, administrative support, business services, operation and maintenance (continued) 
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and bus transportation. The School Board provides a full range of public education services al~)propriate to grade levels ranging from pre-kindergarten through grade 12. These include regular and endched academic education, special education for disabled children and vocational education. The school system has a current enrollment of approximately 32,700 pupils. The School Board is authodzed to establish public schools as it deems necessary, to provide adequate school facilities for the children of the padsh, to determine the number of teachers to be employed and to determine the local supplement to their salaries. Accordingly, since the School Board members are elected by the public: and have decision-making authority, the power to designate management, the ability to significantly influence operations and primary accountabilily for financial matters, the School Board is not included in any other governmental reporting entity. 
ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK St. Tammany Parish is one of the southeastern padshes (counties) cff Louisiana and covers an area of 1,141 square miles. It is located directly north of New Orleans on the north shore of Lake Pontchartrain and has been ranked as one of the fastest growth areas in the United States. St. Tammany was the fastest growing parish in Louisiana during the 1970s and the 1980s and, thus far, in the 1990s. The population has almost tripled since 1970 and today's population of 174,000 is an increase of 24% over 1986's population. If the growth in population continues at its current rate, it is estimated that the population will be approaching 211,000 by the year 2002. St. Tammany has experienced a 20% growth rate over the last five years and there are more than 65,000 households in the parish and this number is expected to increase to more than 76,000 by 2002. The economy of St. Tammany Padsh is primarily residential orientecl, which has brought an influx of retail and service establishments, offices and shopping centers. However, there is a unique blend of residents employed in a variety of diverse industries ranging from agriculture to space-age technology. The parish currently has a 4.9 percent unemployment rate as compared to a statewide rate of 6.6 percent and a national rate of 5.4 percent. Its per capita personal income of $22,138 ranks first in the State whose average is $1g,000, with the national average being $23,196. The median household effective buying income in the padsh in 1996 was $34,634 compared to a state rate of $27,090 and a national rate of $33,482. The value of single- family homes in 1996 averaged $102,745 in the eastern section of the parish and $155,042 in the western section. Total retail sales for 1996 were in excess of $1.64 billion and St. Tammany Padsh is ranked number one in the State in retail trade employment. The assessed value of residential and commercial property has increased by 6.7 percent over the previou.,~ year. Economic indicators throughout the padsh continue to reflect gains and St. Tammany Parish continues to enjoy an expanding economy ddven by the retail sales and s~,=rvices establishments. The projected population growth is indicative of further growth in retail sales and continues to drive major constriction projects for grocery stores, building supply stores, furniture stores, drug stores, general merchandise stores and other consumer oriented businesses. ThE,= expansion of the retail sales and services establishments, coupled with the increasing growth in home construction, promises economic boosts in both sales and property taxes. (continued) 



 

St. Tammany Parish's economy is also being driven by the tourism industry. The parish ranks ninth in the state in tourism related revenue having generated $110 million in 1996. This is almost three times the $38 million received in 1987. Since Slidell, in the eastern part of the parish, is the junction site of three interstate highways and three federal highways, sufficient vehicular traffic exists to provide a continuing source of potential tourists. St. Tammany Parish has consistently appeared on national top-ten lists as an ideal community for retirees to reside. Two retirement assisted living centers have opened during the past year. Christwood, in the western part of the Parish, has 170 units on 57 acres, and Azalea Estates, in the eastern section of the Parish has 52 units on 5 acres. Additionally, a third center, also to be located in the eastern part of the Parish, is in the developmental phase. The St. Tammany Parish Economic Development Foundation (STEDF) is playing a major role in coordinating with other regional economic development organizations to target key commercial and industrial interest for future development. STEDF is participating with the Partners for Stennis Group, consisting of community leaders from Mississippi and Louisiana, to market the former Army Ammunition Plant, which closed in 1992, at Mississippi's Stennis Space Center. Nearly two million square feet are available and approximately 65% of all future employees are expected to reside in St. Tammany Parish. STI-DF is also coordinating with Meti'oVision and the, Florida Parishes [-'conomic Development Association to target key commercial and industrial interest for future development. Additionally, STEDF is working with the Chambers of Commerce to encourage the local municipalities and the parish government to cooperate and coordinate their activities in the matters of planning and zoning. This population growth and economic expansion present both opportunities and challenges for the School Board in the coming years. As mentioned elsewhere in this letter, the School Board ha.,; initiated the first phase of its Long-Range Plan to provide the capital facilities necessary for an expanding school system. However, since economic expansion usually trails population growth and the related increase in demand for current resources, the School Board will continue to explore methods to finance both the anticipated increases in demand for current operating expenditures and the need to provide the additional capital facilities required for a continuously expanding school system. MAJOR INITIATIVES The Partnerships in Education (Adopt-A-School), begun in fiscal year 1989, continues to expand with all schools participating with at least one area business to share resources in supporl of public education. The businesses are recruited to provide a long-term commitment to furnish resource speakers, tutors, internships and sponsorships and to make donations of materials, supplies, equipment, and, in some instances, monetary assistance. The business community ha,,; shown its overwhelming support for the program. The area's chambers of commerce and bu~;iness councils continue to coordinate efforts and to provide assistance. It is our goal to continue to have all schools in partnership with at least one business. Currently, the Southern Association of Colleges and Schools (SACS) has accredited all twenty-two elementary, eight middle, thirteen junior high and seven high schools. (continued) 



 

The Parent Involvement Program is utilized in every school in the system. The goal is to involve parents in the child's education in whatever capacity the parents offer (first aid assistant, library aide, classroom tutor, parenting workshop, etc.). In fiscal 1997, more than 100,000 hours vrere donated by parent volunteers. 
In order to prepare students to compete in a global, technological, information-based economy, the school system created the School-to-Work Program at the high school level. These models are designed to make learning relevant and meaningful for the students. The academy concept, the career paths, and the school-based enterprises are some of the school structures. Input from tl'~ ~mr~,~tn~y, employers, and from teachers has sewed to guide ~he development o4 all models. Career orientation, an elective for ninth grade students, is the cornerstone of the career academy concept which culminates in non-paid student internships in the workplace during their senior year. Schools develop partnerships with community employers that support the school related activities. Sumrner intemships for teachers have provided educators opportunities to see how what they teach translates into workplace competencies and foundation skills. As a result, students are more focused and will be better prepared to enter the economy when they oomplete their high school education. The school system initiated Operation ,lump Start which is designed to provide students who have been expelled an opportunity to continue their education in a more restricted environment The school is housed at the Southeast Louisiana Hospital and eligible students in grades six through twelve are bussed from all over the parish to this facility. The pupil teacher ratio is approximately twelve to one with an instructional staff of five regular education and two special education teachers. The staff also includes a full-time principal, a secretary, a social worker, a school resource off=cer, two instructional aides, and a part-time custodian. Eighty-four students is the maximum number that may be served by the existing staff. Students are expected to wear uniforms and complete a social skills component in addition to their academic requirements. Students are assigned by the Superintendent for the duration of their expulsion and until they progress through the social skills' continuum. 
During fiscal year 1997, the School Board formed an Instructional Technology Committee, consisting of parents, community leaders, teachers, and administrators, whose mission was to develop a world-class and nationally recognized instructional technology program which promotes significant improvements in the learning and teaching process in all schools of the St. Tammany Parish School Systern. The School Board intends to develop responsible lifelong learners who are able to achieve and excel in a global society of continuing technological advancement. As such, the school system will invest in state-of-the-art equipment and services, ensure teacher and staff development opportunities, and continuously maintain and upgrade the technology base. The school system will also install local area networks at each school, develop a wide area network which includes all schools, provide Internet access to all schools and facilitate school to home connections. Each school will dew;lop an instructional technology plan and establish an instructional technology committee (composed of parents, teachers, and administrators) to oversee the implementation of the system's technology pl;m based on the school's individual needs. (continued) 



 

The Instructional Technology Committee's program was approved by the School Board on June 12, 1997. Implementation is scheduled to commence in fiscal year 1998 with funding being provided initially by the General Fund and by State appropriation. Future funding will be provided by the General Fund and the availability of state, federal and corporate/private funds. For those certified teachers who aspire to an administrative position, the School Board began the St. Tammany Parish Administrative Training Program. During the first semester, the participants are required to attend formal training sessions on the myriad facets of school administration, r)uring the second semester, participants are required to perform a minimum of 45 hours of administrative duties as determined by the pdncipal. By receiving both formal and on- the-job training, participants will be introduced to the many requirements of school administration. During fiscal 1997, the Data Processing Department completed two major multi-year projects. Both projects involved the building of long-term infrastructures. Systems analysis, programming, and implementation were completed for the new distdbuted,microcomputer Personnel/Payroll Departments upgrade. The second major project was the completion of the parish wide area network comprising all schools and office sites. OdginaUy estimated to be a three to five-year project, the Data Processing Departrnent completed the project in February 1997, 36 months ahead of schedule. Estimated to cost between $1 million and $1.5 million ff installed by commercial vendors, the Department completed the project for less than $300,000. Additionally, the Department implemented Intemet access as a central service on the parish wide network, thereby expanding its direct instructional support. The Long-Range Planning Committee, composed of more than 100 people representing a cross section of the entire community, made numerous recommendations to enhance our educational program and to undertake a capital expansion program. To fund this construction program, on May 5, 1990, the voters of St. Tammany Parish overwhelmingly approved two propositions which authorized the issuance of $40,000,000 in general obligation bonds and $10,000,000 in sales tax bonds. Through fiscal 1997, two elementary schools, a middle school and a high school have been constructed adding a total of 134 classrooms. Additionally, the construction of 224 classrooms at existing schools and renovations of cafeterias, administrative area.=;, libraries and various other school facilities have been completed. The cor~struction program is approximately 99% complete. Remaining is one project involving renovation to an existing building. It is anticipated that phase one will be completed in 1998. Additionally, the General Fund has provided $1,700,000 to construct three 14 classroom additions to existing schools. During fiscal 1996, one 14-classroom addition was completed and the two remaining additions were completed in 1997. During fiscal 1996, the School Board cornpiled a list of existing cdtical capital improvements that would be addressed over the next two years. This program provides |or the construction of a new 45 classroom elementary school in the Mandeville area and for the construction of 280 classrooms at existing schools. On Apdl 20, 1996, the voters of St. Tammany Parish approved aproposition which authorized the issuance of $25,000,000 in general obligation bonds to fund this construction program. During fiscal 1997, construction began on 170 classrooms at existing schools with anticipated completion being in the fall of 1997. The remaining 110 classrooms are scheduled for completion by the fall of 1998. The new 45 classroom school is scheduled to open in the fall of 1999. (continued) 



 

Additionally, tentative plans are being formulated to submit for voter approval dudng the 1998 fi.,;cal year a $40,000,000 general obligation bond issue to be secured by ad valorem taxation. It is anticipated that, because of the growth in the tax rolls, these bonds will be serviced with existing millage and will not result in increased taxation. "l-he bonds will be used for the construction and improvements to school facilities. FINANCIAL INFORMATION Internal Controls. Management of the School Board is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal controls designed to ensure that the assets of the School Board are protected from loss, theft or misuse and to ensure that adequate accounting data are compiled to allow for the preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting pdnciples. Internal controls are designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these objectives are met. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that: (1) the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived; and (2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires estirnates and judgements by management. Single Audit. As a recipient of federal, state and padsh financial awards, the School Board also is responsible for ensuring that adequate internal controls are in place to ensure compliance with applicable laws and regulations related to those programs. The internal controls are subject to periodic evalualion by management. As a part of the School Board's single audit, described earlier, signil~cant internal controls are considered, including that portion related to federal financial awards, as well as to test the School Board's compliance with material provisions of applicable laws and regulations. The results of the School Board's single audit for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1997 provided no instances of material weaknesses in the internal control structure or significant violations of applicable laws and regulations. 
Budgeting Controls. In addition, the School Board maintains budgetary controls. The objective of these budgetary controls is to ensure compliance with the annual appropriated budgets, including all subsequent amendments, approved by the School Board. Activities of the General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, Debt Service Funds and Capital Projects Funds are included in the annual appropriated budget. The level of budgetary control (that is, the level at which expenditures cannot exceed the appropriated amount) is established at the function or project level within the individual funds. The School Board also maintains an encumbrance accounting system as one technique of accomplishing budgetary control. Encumbered amounts at year end, for budgetary purposes, are included as expenditures in the General Fund and the Capital Projects Funds. In the other funds, encumbered amounts lapse at year end; however, encumbrances generally are reappropdated as part of the next year's budget. As demonstrated by the statements and schedules included in the financial section of this report, the School Board continues to meet its responsibility for sound financial management. General Government Functions. The following schedule presents a summary of General Fund, Special Revenue Funds and Debt Service Funds revenues for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1997 and the amount and percentage of increases and decreases in relation to prior year revenues. (continued) 



.~_e_DJJ_~. Amount Increase Percent of Percent (Decrease) increase ~f.I~/ From 1996 (Decrease) Local sources: Taxes: Ad valorem $34,136,248 18.30% $5,717,220 20.12% Sales and use 37,386,310 20.04 1,053,708 2.90 Rentals, leases and royalties 11,105 .01 (1,562) (13.38) Tuition 697,298 .37 131,338 23.21 Earnings on Investments 2,125,399 1.14 458,744 27.52 Food service 2,336,533 1.25 52,569 2.30 Other 476.49~ __,2=_6. 15.387 3,32 Total local sources 77.170,38.~ 4.1.~.1 7.427.404 10,65 State sources: Equalization Contributions to Teachers' Retirement Revenue sharing Professional Improvement Program Other Total state sources 

93,495,533 50.12 10,742,147 169,212 1.631.845 09 88 1,200,771 .64 1,546,241 98.043.602, ==i2..56 
(9,591) (19,034) (55,718) 244.518 10.902.322 Federal sources 11.334.13;~ ..~.07 412.164 "FOTALREVENUES 

13.01 (5.36) (1.15) (4.43) 18.78 12.51 3.77 
The two most significant local revenue sources are property taxes and sales taxes. Property tax mileages are established by the State Constitution and/or tax propositions approved by the electorate. Any increase to current millages or additional millages must be approved by a referendum of the voters. The large increase in ad valorem taxes over the previous year is because 1996 was a reassessment year and generated additional funds. Sales taxes show a nominal growth in collections which is attributable to the expansion of the local economy over the previous year and to the growth in the population. The School Board collects the maximum two percent sales tax allowed by state law, The increase in earnings on investments is primarily attributable to the accumulation of a General Fund fund balance, thereby providing funds for investment. State revenue sources continue to provide the majority of the School Board's revenue. The increase in the State's 1996-97 appropriation for equalization is composed primarily of additional funding generated by the growth in student enrallment. The increase in federal sources is primarily due to extra funding for the various programs directed toward disadvantaged students, particularly for those in the IDEA Title I Program. (continued) 



 

The following schedule presents a summary of General Fund, Special Revenue Funds and Debt Service Funds expenditures for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1997 and the percentage of increases and decreases in relation to prior year expenditures. 

Current: Instruction: Regular Ed programs Special Ed programs Vocational education programs Other instructional programs Special programs Adult education programs 
$62,940,124 28,203,734 3,787,578 3,742,253 3,634,775 203,0{I_6 

Increase Percent of Percent (Decrease) Increase .O.f_~o_.t.~ from 1996 ~Decrea~) 
35.51% $5,187,048 15.91 3,388,559 2.14 2.11 2.05 .1_1 
127,088 583,643 312,622 (10.172) Total instruction 102.511,5 !.(~ 7.5_Z_.#. 3 9,588.78Q Support services: Pupil support Instructional staff support General administration School administration Business administration Operation and maintenance of plant Pupil transportation Central services 

6,752,998 6,429,439 3,115,312 10,009,169 1,149,8(H 13,445,268 10,747,792 1.394,74_6 

3.81 3.63 1.76 5.65 .65 7.58 6.06 .76 Total support services 53.044.52_6 2_9_,9_2= Food services Community services Facilities acquisition and construction Debt service: Principal Interest and other charges 
9,248,176 675,554. 556,912 5,630,000 5.602,t~Q 

5.22 .38 .31 3.18 _ .&J_6. 

581,758 541,364 (184,036) 1,268,792 53.761 645,704 941,911 141.48Z 4,190.76~ 543,975 110.811 

8.98% 13.66 3.,47 18.48 9.41 (4.77) 10.32 
9.43 9.19 (5.58) 14.52 4.90 6.71 9.61 11.29 8.58 6.25 19.62 411,201 282.20 655,000 661.89~ 13.17 13.40 TOTAL EXPENDITURE'S ~  =1=0=(~_0% .$16.16;~,4:~1 10.03% The overall increase in expenditures is primarily attributable to the continued growth in student enrollment. As a result, an additional 59 regular education teacher~;, 60 special education teachers and 10 special education teacher aides were added to the staff (luring the 1997 fiscal (continued) 



year. As shown above, expenditures for instructional purposes increased by $9.6 million, which represents approximately 59% of the total increase in expenditures. This indicates that we are continuing to pl~-=ce a larger portion of our resources into the classroom. During fiscal year 1997, the General Fund financed the construction of a new administrative building to house tile Data Processing and Personnel Departments. General Fund Balance. The fund balance of the General Fund increased in fiscal year 1997 to $11,215,350 which is the equivalent of 19 working days of expenditures. The fund balance is primarily earmarked for the improvement in ratings of any future debt issuances. The School Board doe.,; not anticipate entedng the short-term debt market to finance current operating expenditures. 
Debt Administration. At June 30, 1997, the School Board had a number of debt issues outstanding, including $15,270,000 of sales tax bonds, $75,130,000 of general obligation bonds. and $4.345,000 of certificates of indebtedness. The School Board is limited by state statute from issuing sales tax bonds in excess of seventy-five percent of the anticipated sales tax revenues. The one-cent sales and use tax dedicated to service the bonds will expire in 2007 when the bonds are redeemed. 
Under state statute, the School Board's general obligation bonded debt issuances are subject to a limitation based on thirty-five percent of total assessed value of real and personal property within the parish. As of June 30, 1997, the School Board's genersl obligation bonded debt of $75,130,000 was well below the legal limit of $233,281,605 and debt per capita equaled $430. The general obligation bonds are serviced by an ad valorem tax levy. The certificates of indebtedness are serviced by an irrevocable pledge from the levy and collection of a special General Fund ad wdorem tax of 4.47 mills. 
A summary of ratings, by issue, follows 
L~.,sJ J_e Sales Tax Bonds: 1992 (1) 1995 (2) General Obligation Bonds: 1990 (1) 1991 (1) 1992 (3) 1993 1993 (1) 1996 (2) 1997 Certificates of Indebtedness 1994 (3) 

Original Amount 
$11,000,000 7.500.000 9,875,000 30,800,000 5,000,000 3,540,000 13,195,000 25,000,000 7.415.000 

Ratings Standard Moodv's and Poor'~ Aaa Aaa Aaa Aaa Aaa Baal Aaa Aaa A3 6,000.000 Aaa 

AAA AAA AAA AAA AAA A AAA AAA p.- 
(continued) 



(1) Insured by Financial Guaranty Insurance Company (2) Insured by Financial Security Assurance, Inc. (3) Insured by AMBAC Indemnity Corporation During fiscal year 1997, as mentioned previously in this letter, the School Board issued $25,000,000 of general obligation bonds dated June 1, 1996 which are secured by unlimited ad valorem taxation. The bonds mature from March 1, 1997 through March 1, 2016 and have an interest rate ranging from 5.375% to 8.0%. The proceeds are to be used for the construction of new school facilities and for improvements to existing school facilities. The bonds were approved by the voters of St. Tammany Parish in a referendum held April 20, 1996. On February 5, 1997, the School Board issued $7,415,000 of general obligation bonds to advance refund $6,970,000 of School District No. 12 outstanding bonds. The advance refunding will reduce the total debt service payments by $739,657 over the life of the bonds. The refunded bonds are considered defeased and have been removed from the School Board's General Long- Term Debt Account Group. Also not included in the School Board's General Long-Term Debt Account Group are $6,595,000 of School District No. 12 General Obligation Bonds defeased on June 1, 1991 and $2,005,000 of School District No. 8 General Obligation Bonds defeased on February 1, 1993. The Notes tothe Financial Statements contain morE; detailed information on the defeased bonds. Cash Management. Cash temporarily idle during the year was invested in demand deposits, certificates of deposit and the Louisiana Asset Management Pool (LAMP) administered by the State Treasurer. The School Board earned interest revenue of $4,142,049 on all investments for the year ended June 30, 1997. The School Beard's investment policy is to minimize credit and market risks while maintaining a competitive yield on its portfolio. Accordingly, deposits in financial institutions were either insured by federal depository insurance or secured by the pledge of securities owned by the financial institution. These pledged secudties are held by a mutually agreed upon third-party financial institution in the name of the School Board. All of the deposits in financial institutions made by the School Board during the year and at June 30, 1997 are classified in the category of the lowest credit risk as defined by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. The deposits made in LAMP are more fully discussed in the Notes to Financial Statements. Risk Management. During fiscal year 1988, the School Board initiated a limited risk management program for workers' compensation. As part of this comprehensive plan, resources are being accumulated in an Internal Service Fund to meet potential losses. In addition, various risk control techniques, including employee accident prevention training, have been implemented to minimize accident-related losses. Third-party coverage is currently maintained for individual workers' compensation claims in excess of $250,000. In addition, dudng fiscal year 1990, the School Board initiated a limited risk management program for general liability and property damage. Resources are transferred from the General Fund and accumulated in an Internal Service Fund to pay potential claims. The School Board has undertaken a program to determine methods to limit our exposure to general liability claims and (continued) 
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to minimize any potential loss of or damage to property. Third party coverage of commercial insurance claims in excess of $150,000 for both general liability and property damage is maintained by the School Board. OTHERINFORMATION Independent Audit. State statutes require an annual audit by independent certified public accountants. The accounting and auditing firm of KPMG Peat Marwick LI_P was selected by the School Board to perform the fiscal year 1997 audit. In addition to meeting the requirements set forth in state statutes, the audit also was designed to meet the requirements of the federal Single Audit Act and related OMB Circular A-133. The independent auditors' report on the general purpose financial statements is included in the financial section of this report. The independent auditors' reports related specifically to the Single Audit Act are included in tile Single Audit Section. Awards. The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the St. Tammany Parish School Board for its comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal year ended June 30. 1996. In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government unit must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized cornprehensive financial report, whose contents conform to program standards. Such reports must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements. The St, Tammany Parish School Board was also awarded a Certificate of Excellence in Financial Reporting for its comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1996 by the Association of School Business Officials, International (ASBO). The award certifies that the school system has presented its comprehensive annual financial report to the ASBO Panel of Review for critical review and evaluation and that the report was judged to have cornplied with the principles and practices of financial reporting recognized by ASBO. Receiving the award is recognition that the school system has met the highest standards of excellence in school financial reporting. Both a Certificate of Achievement (GFOA) and a Certificate of Excellence (ASBO) are valid for a period of one year only. The St. Tammany Parish School Board has received both certificates for the last nine consecutive years. We believe our current comprehensive annual financial report continues to conform to the program requirements of both organizations and we are submitting it to GFOA and ASBO to determine its eligibility for each of the certificates. (continued) 

11 



 

Acknowledgments. The preparation of the comprehensive annual financial report on a timely basis was made possible by the dedicated service of the entire staff of the Business Affairs Department Each member of the department has our sincere appreciation for the contributions made in the preparation of this report. In addition, our gratitude is extended to the Graphic Arts Department for their valued assistance in the design and reproduction of this report In closing, without the leadership and support of the Members of the School Board, both ndividually and collectively, preparation of this report would not have been possible. 
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Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in F:inancial Reporting Presented to 
St. Tammany Parish School Board, Louisiana For its C;omprehensive Annual Financial Report for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1996 A Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting is presented by the Government Finance Oificers Association of the United States and Canada to government units and public employee retiremenl systems whose comprehensive annual financial reports (C;AFRs) achieve the highest standards in gow.~rnment accounting and financial reporting. 



O~ sCHOOL BUsIN~S INTERNATIONAL 

This Ce~ificate ofExcellencein F'mancial Reportingis presented to ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD For its Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1996 Upon recommendation of the AssoclaUorCs Panel of Review which has Judged that the Report substanlially cenforms to principles and standards of ASBO's Certificate of Excellence Program 
President Executive Director 
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KPMG Peat Marwick LLP Suite 3B00 One Shell Square New Orleans. LA 70139-3599 

The Members of the St. Tammany Parish School Board Covington, Louisiana: We have audited the accompanying general-purpose financial statements of the St. Tammany Parish School Board (the School Board), as of and for the year ended June 30, 1997, as listed in the table of contents. These general-purpose financial statements are the responsibility of the School Board's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these general-purpose financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporling the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 
In our opinion, the general-purpose financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the School Board as of June 30, 1997, and the results of its operations and the cash flows of its proprietary fired type for the year then ended in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 7, 1997, on our consideration of the School Board's internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants. 

Me~r F~rm of KpMG In~et n~lic~ar 21.7 



Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general-purpose financial statements of School Board taken as a whole. The combining, individual fund and individual account group financial statements and schedules listed in the accompanying fable of contents are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the general- purpose financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the general-purpose financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the general-purpose financial statements taken as a ~vhole. 
November 7, 1997 



ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD Covington, Louisiana Combined Balance Sheet-All Fund Types and Account Groups June 30, 1997 With Comparative "fotals for June 30, 1996 

ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS Assets: Cash and cash equiw~lents (note 4) Investments (note 6) ~eceivabtes: Taxes: Ad valoren'~ Sales and use Intergovernmental: Federal State Other Total receivables 
I~ue from other funds (note 6) 

Govemmentat Fund Types 

Inventory (note 1-1) Property, plant and equipment (note 7) Land Buildings and improvemenls Furniture and equipment Construction in progress Other debits: Amount availoble in debt service funds Amount to be provided for retirement of general long-tenT= debt TOTAL ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS 

E;~i~,.ral Specia| Reven~t~~ Debt Servic~ Cap~al D~cct~ 
$22,608,413 1.843.337 6.602.'~ 2,~Z.607 .t 6~6,765 
691,623 
41,290 264,589 95,120 
3,582,863 1,396,816 127,252 7,199 1,192~622- 5 11,~14 130 

2,956,026 

392,611 

_ 422,~~4 439,906 439.906 
856,228 166,589 567,500 163.443 



80,1o3 80,103 
129,906 

5,836,103 186,658,867 29,478,744 17.325,627 

391.841 752,361 ~249,405 
4,676,249 163.443 5,835,103 186.668.857 29,478,744 17,326,627 

345,321 368,378 5,480.063 
3,927,208 170.676 5,562,044 143,712,039 26,919,828 46,228,442 

9,154,157 9,154,157 7,235.368 93,770,317 93,770j317 75,636,574 421.995.285 360.947.261 (continued) 



ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD Covington, Louisiana Combined Balance Sheet-All Fund Types and Account Groups (continued) 

LIABILITIES, EQUITY AND OTHER CREDITS Liabilities: ,C~alaries and wage.=; payable Payroll deductions and wilhholdings payable Accounts payable Retainage payable Due to other funds (note 6) Other liabilities Deferred revenues 

Governmental Fund Types 
E~imml 
$13,437,920 988,470 1,990,726 

Deposits due other.~ (note 16) Matured bonds and interest payable Liability for self-insurance losses (note 8) Claims liability (note 8) E;onds and certificates of indebtedness payable (note 9) Compensated absences payable (notes 1-L and 9) Total Liabilities 
Equity and Other Credits: Investment in general fixed assets Retained Earnings: Designated for self-insurance losses Reserved for employee benefits Fund balances (note, l-N): Reserved for encumbrances Resewed for inventing/ Reserved for debt ;~ervice Unreserved, undesignated Total Equity and C)ther Credits Commitments and contingencies (notes 7 and 17) TOTAL LIABILITIES, EQUITY AND OTHER CREDITS 
Se~.~ accompanving notes to (~nancia| statements 

608,090 65,432 67.838 

Special Revenue 
180,631 235,321 

Debt 

4,017,735 37,818 25,225 136,174 

Capital 
37,587 865,005 12,579 

3t;~i~,,!~,~ 4.595.086 ~8 915 f'll 

296,219 68,395 t0,~J2(),j 31 3,313,657 9.154.157 
7.061.586 19,493,456 1 ~i~21~!,350 3,382,052 ~ 26 555,042 



Proprietary Fund Type Fiduciary Fund Type Account Groups Internal ~e, ryic~ f~ 
150 21,025 27 405.361 
816,244 867.521 2.354,356 

General EJ~eat ~.~,L~ General Long-Term 

94,745,000 8.179,474 

J~J~ib~t A Page 2 of 2 
Totals (Memorandum Only) 3997 

13.618.701 988,470 2,284,659 865.005 4.676,249 110,657 609.373 2,354,356 0 815.244 867.521 94,745,000 8.179.474 

11.937,601 695,886 2,030,844 477,288 3,927,208 118,735 675,195 2,128,398 90,442 963,332 972,126 74,930,000 7.941,942 2,1()9,32~ 2,354---~3~ .~i~_- =N O N~ 102,924,474 130L1 i EI,709 1~,888,997 
1,215,644 1.059.919 239,298.331 

2,275,644 NONE 23.9,2298,331 NONE 

239,298.331 222A22.353 1,215,644 1,059.919 7.356,805 68,395 9,154,157 33.727,2_44 
998,564 685,903 5,968,601 64,286 7,235.368 _16~683~189 291,880,576 254,058,264 



ST TAMMANY PARISH ~Ct'IOOL BOARD Covington, Louisiana Comb~ed Sta~emeof of Reveries. Expenditures. and Changes in Fund Batsnces AJI Govemmentst Fund Types For the Year Ended June 30.1097 Wdh Comparative Totals for the Year Ended June 30.1096 
RE'~v'ENU ES Local sounDes: 1axes: Ad valorem Sales end use Rentals, taases, er~ royaNies Tu~on Earnings on investments FOOd serv~e Other SUite =ounces: Equtdization Contdbubons to Teachers' Rebremeof Revenue sharing P,ofessionel Improvement Program O~er Fe~ml so~rce$ Total revenues EXPENDITURES Current Inlitruction: Regutar Ed programs Special Ed programs Voc~tkmal Ed programs Other instn~tiOnal programs .~pec~al prog~ms tudult Ed programs Support services: Pupil support ~nstruchonaf staff support E;er~erar administrlaiton SchOol adminisVa0on Business adminJstraiton Oparatk)n and maintenance of p~ant Pupil transportation Central $ervi~s Food servEe Community service programs Facilities acquisition and construt.'t~on Debt $ervk:e: Prir,cipat retirement Interest and bank charges tssuance costs Total expandrtures EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES OTHER FfNANCING SOURCES (USES) Prc<~eeds from bOnd sales Acc4ued interest rec, Bived Operating transfers in Operating transfers o~t Payment to escrow agent Total other fJnsncin9 sources (uses) EXCESS (DEFIC}ENC'/') OF REVENUES AND OTHER FiNANCiNG SOURCES OVER EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF "='EAR FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR See a~:companying notes to tin,racial statements 

GoJ~r~d 

t54.412 1.375.408 
92.312.015 

Special Re~n~ Debt 
9,958,990 37,386,310 10.105 542,886 209.266 540.725 2,336,533 32.160 

476.805 
__12.2~8(13L762 ~2~638 I Oj499,723 
62,538,271 27A52.174 3,54O,447 3.5t7.526 90,667 203.040 6.050.112 5.519.268 2,308.558 10.000.109 1,t49,604 13.265.388 10,628,069 1.394.746 872,37O 37,085 55t;,912 

33,646,855 (2,142,200) 

702,880 910,171 401,295 159.850 119,723 0.375.606 637.669 
16,560,~09 3~S S53~2~ 
1.520.965 (37A00~10) 

5,630,000 5.542.807 11~547~97 

604.176 2.577.876 3.382 052 



 

Cap~1 (Memo~ndum Only) 1997 
34,136,246 37,386,310 10,105 697,299 3,619,365 2,336,533 476,496 

26.416.028 36,332,602 11.667 565.960 2.615,024 2,263.964 463,109 

1,793.666 166L342,06~ 168j7~602 

3O,OOO 6,949.776 
25,OOO,OO0 1,640.060 
26,640,000 

5,630,000 5,542.807 89 391 
(4,876j 568~ 

12,484,187 20.355.157 4,070,655 

4,675,000 4,940.903 _67~6682 169,588~8856 ~6~ 
36,311,106 (39,311.106) NONE 
(834.254) 30,TeS,66e 29 951 444 

Exhibit B 



 

School admini};bation Business administration Openltk>n lind maintenanclJ of plant Pupil Uansporblrion Centnar =ervices Food servce Commun~y jervce programs F a cllitJes acquis~)n and COnstruction De~t sePc~ principal ref~'err,~nt interest end t~k c.her0es Issuance cost Total expenditures EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES O1 HER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) PrOceeds from ~=nd sales ACC~Jed interest iic~JMed Opera,rig Iransler~ in Operating t[ansfers out F~yment to escr ~w agent 

ST, TAMMANY PARfSH SCHOOL BOARD Covinglon, Louisiana Combined Statement of Revenues. Expenditures. and Changel in Fund BalanoB= Budget ~nd Act~=~ + All Gover~er~tat Fund Types For the Year Ended June 30.1997 GENERAL FUND (NON +GAAP BASIS) SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS (GAAP BASIS) eu+dgeL t~ml 
$23,333,301 147,341 1.120,000 302.244 92.312.015 166,334 1.631.645 1,207,385 741.094 __ 2271343 
64,062,736 27.716.05t 3,679.133 0.910.637 110.266 243~97 6,131,160 5,7t3.006 2,417.198 10.002,263 1,161.834 13,858.659 10,720,212 1.425.138 860,541 36.575 658,456 
152 72L~7 684 
(31~36.6~) 
&4,662,052 (2,142.200) 

169.212 1.631.~5 1.200.7T1 1.069~36 ___ ~T~OT7 

146~72~42 

Vandnoe Favom~e LU~,aX ~llJ~L~d Bu~m 
843,859 7,07t 255,40B 144.092 
2,878 (6,614) 328,342 39~734 ~6~6 ~ 4~770 
1,468,298 263.643 139,498 397.976 22,621 40,639 

33,646.655 (1,245,197) {2,142,200) 

36.694.220 10.000 540,000 167,435 2.304,420 32.707 
37.386.310 10,105 542.886 209,266 2,336.533 32.160 

493,860 11,195,324 54.~ 
416.463 755,605 263.585 231,606 3,601X69 711.361 923,451 518,911 162,351 120.555 8.454.503 668.250 
_ ~29 s~s~so _37,7@+j~_~ 
1.515,000 (38,665.810) 

M6,605 s32~ 

702,886 010,171 491,265 

16~5~809 36.683.629 
1.520,~65 (37,400.618) Total ot~er lma+~c~g sources (uses) 32,740~852 31~504~655 (~245~97) ~50 8~LB~ {35~79,6653) EXCESS OF REVENUES AND OTHER FfNANCING SOURCES OVER EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FfNANCING USES 1,211,160 FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 5,884~061 FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR See accompanying notes to financial statem.;nLs 

5,036,070 5~58~1~061 641,024 2~577~874. 3 ~)16 69R 
804+176 ~,577.876 3 38~ 052 

Vanance Favorab~ (unfavor=~) 
(1.307+910 105 2 6~ 41631 32 113 (547 
117,035) U2e,+so; Jl,ale,H6) 
14,61C 5,041, 16,45.4 7,D70 63.681 6,495 13,280 27.616 2.471 632 78,697 30,581 
268~841 ~t~108.005 
5,~65 1,265,162 
163.152 
163 154 



DEBT SERVICE FUNDS (GAAP BASIS) Vadanoe Favorable ,'Uot~y~lbL~ 
9,828,181 B,958,995 130,817 

.EzcbJt,Jt~ 

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS (NON-GAAP BASIS) Budder Vadance Favorable Actual_ (.U~avoral~e) 
540.725 78,125 1,688,480 1,793,966 

10,280~781 10,499,723 208942 1,688,450 1,793~966 

5,630,000 5.553,093 80~91 5,630,000 5,542,807 $8L381 11~557t845 "1 !,547~657 1,267~064) [1,047,934~ 7,415,000 252,564 2.877,964 (137,000) {7,435~39) 2,972,6B9 2,966L723 

10,288 (100~ !(~18e 
22,058,078 17,196,048 4,862,030 
__~050000 _ 30~00_0= _ 20~0000 
25,000,000 25,000,00D 1,640,000 1,640,000 (5,966) 

{5,866) 26 ~0 q00 26~64p~000 .._ NONE 
7,235~68 8.1541~7 213j~ 

6,220,372 11.207,918 
14.5D5 910 8~p~838 



ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD Covirlglon, Louisiana Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Retained Earnings Proprietary Fund Type - Internal Service Funds For the Year Ended June 30, 1997 With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended June 30, 1996 
OPERATING REVENUES Employer c;ontdbutions Insurance proceeds Total operating revenues OPERATING EXPENSES Contractual services Premium payments Benefit payments Claims Decrease in provision for self-insurance losses Other operating expenses Total operating expenses OPERATING INCOME NON-OPERATING REVENUES Earnings on investments NI-T INCOME RETAINED EARNINGS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 

.t99~ 
$2,492.068 2,849,070 93,755 2,585,823 
223,738 819,351 851,223 566,693 (252,693) 9.018 2,217,330 368.493 
222.684 

825.564 3.674.634 
197,282 808,636 971,398 920.627 (166,430) 8.803 2,740.316 934,318 
187,513 591,177 1,121.831 

1,6.84,4_67 RETAINED EARNINGS AT END OF YEAR ~2,,~7.~ 
See accompanying notes to financial staternents 

562.636 



ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD Covington, Louisiana Combined Statement o1 Cash Flows Proprietary Fund Type- Internal Service Funds For the Year Ended June 30, 1997 With Comparative Totats for the Year Ended June 30, 1996 
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES Cash received from employer contributions: Insurance proceeds Cash payments for: Benefits and claims Insurance premiums Services and other operating expenses Net cash provided (used) by operating aCtivities CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES Earnings on investments NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF Y[-~,R CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 

$2,362,162 93.755 (1,534,(i18) (819,351) 
3,108,779 600.000 (1,774,864) (808,636) _ ~171~084~ (130,668) 954,195 

211,~~5 162~334 
80.687 1.136.529 
4 09,O~4 q76 2,957,547 

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided (used) by operating activities: Operating income Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash provided (used) by operating activities: Decrease in provision for selfqnsurance losses Changes in assets and liabilities: (tncrease) decrease in receivables Increase (decrease) in payables Decrease in deferred revenue Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 
See accompanying notes to financial statements 

$365,493 934,318 
(252,693) (166,430) (129,906) (116,552) 294,710 117,431 (2.25_,834) 



St. Ta~any Parish School Board covington, Louisiana Notes to Financial Statements June 30, 1997 I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES A. Reporting Entity B, Basis of Presentation-Fund Accounting C, Basis of Accounting D, Budget Practices E, Encumbrances F. Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments G. Intergovernmental Receivables H. Short-Term Interfund Receivables/Payables I. Inventory J. General Fixed Assets K. Long-Term Obligations L. Compensated Absences M. Sales and Use Taxes N. Reserves of Fund Balance O. Claims and Judgements P. Comparative Data and Total Columns on Combined Statements 2. EXCESS OF EXPENDITURES OVER APPROPRIATIONS 3. AD V/JJOREM TAXES 4. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 5. INVESTMEN"fS 6. DUE FROM/TO OTHER FUNDS 7. PROPERTY, PI~/Cr AND EQUIPMENT 
9. CHANGES IN GENERAL LONG-TERM DEBT i0. DEFEASANCE AND ISSUANCE OF BONDS Ii. PRIOR yEAR DEFEASANCE OF DEBT 12. TAX ARBITRAGE REBATE 13. RETIREMENT 14. POSTEMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE AND LIFE INSUPJhNCE BENEFITS 15. LEASES 16. CHANGES IN AGENCY DEPOSITS DUE OTHERS 17. LITIGATION AND CLAIMS 



St, Ta~narW Parish School Board covington, Louisiana Notes to Financial Statements June 30, 1997 i. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES A, REPORTING ENTITY The St. Tammany Parish School Board (School Board) was created by Louisiana Revised Statute (LRS) 17:51 for the pu~]~ose of providing pLLblic education for the children within St. Tammany Parish, Louisiana. The School Board is authorized by LRS 17:81 to establish policies and re%nllations for its owTt government consistent with the laws of the State of Louisiana and the regulations of the Louisiana Boazd of Elementary and Secondary Education. The School Board is authorized to estab]ish public schools as it deems necessary, to provide adequate school facilities for the children of the parish, to determine the nu,~er of teachers to be employed, and to determine local supplement to their salaries. The School Board is comprised of 15 members who are el~-~cted from 15 d~stricts for concurrent terms of four years. The School Board operates 50 schools within the parish with a total enrollment of approximately 32,700 pupils. In conjunction with the regular educational p~ograms, some of these schools offer special education mnd/or adult education p~ograms. Additionally, the School Board provides transportation and school food services for the students. For financial reporting purposes, the School Board includes all funds, account g]~oups, and activities for which the School Board exercises financis] accountability. The School Board members are elected by the public, have decision- making authority, the power to designate management, the ability to significantly ir~fluence operations and primary accountability for fiscal matters. Certain %/nits of local government, over which the School Board exercises no financis] accountability~ such as the parish police jury, other independently elected parish officials, and municipalities within the parish, are excluded from the financisl statements. These units of government are considered separate reporting entities and issue ~inancial statements separate from that of the School Board. The School Board is not a component unit of any other entity and does not have any component units which require inclusion in the-~ general purpose financial statements. B. BASIS OF PRESENTATION-FUND ACCOL~qTING The accounts of the School Board are organized on the basis of funds and account groups, each of which is considered a separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprises its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues, and ex~)enditures or expenses, as appropriate. Revenues are accounted for in these indlv:[dual funds based upon the purpose for which they are to be spent and the means by which spending activities are controlled. The funds presented in the financial statements are described as follows: 
31 

continued 



ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD COVINGTON# LOUISIANA Notes to Financial Statements June 30, 1997 
Governmental funds are those through which most governmental functions of the School Board .are financed. The acquisition, use and balances of the School Board's expendable financial resources and the related liabilities (except those accounted for in the proprietary funds) are accounted for through governmental funds. The measurement focus is upon determination of changes in financial position, rather than upon net income determination. The following are the School Board's governmental fund types: General Fund The General Fund is the general operating fund of the School Board. It accounts for all financial resources exce~>t those recD1ired to be accounted for in other funds Special Revenue Funds Special Revenue Funds account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes. These funds account for the revenues and expenditures related to federal, state and local grant and entitlement programs and special district funds established for various educational objectives. Debt Service I~nds Debt Service Funds, established to meet requirements of bond ordinances, are used to account for the accumulation of resources for and the payment of general long-term debt principal, interest, and related costs. Capita] Projects Funds Capital Projects Funds account for financial resources to be used for the acquisition or construction of! major capita] facilities (other than those financed by the proprietary funds). Separate capital projects funds are maintained to account for the proceeds of major general obligation bonds and other financing proceeds. (continued 



Pr~r~et:arv Fund 
St. Tammany Parish School Board Covington, Louisiana Notes to Financial Statements June 30, 1997 

Proprietary Funds are used to account: for the School Board's ongoing organizations and activities which are similar to those often found in the private sector. The School Board applies all applicable FASB prculo~ulcements issued on or before November 30, 1989 in accounting and reporting for its propriety fund operations unless those pronouncements conflict: with or contradict GASB pronouncements. The measurement focus is upon dete~,ination of net income. The School Board's proprietary fw%d type is limited to Internal Service Funds as follows: Internal Service Funds The Internal Service Funds are used to account for the accumulation of resources for and the payment of benefits by the school Board's self-insurance programs. The school Board maintains the following self-insurance funds: workers' Compensation Fund - This fund is used to account for the payment of workers' compensation benefits. Risk Management Fund - Th~s fund is used to account for general liability, which is ful]y insured with a deductible of $150,000 per Occurrence, and property damage, which is fully insured with a deductible of $150,000 per occurrence. Fund revenues are derived from government allocations. These revenues are planned to match: (i) expenses of insurance premiums in excess of self-insurance amounts; (2) estimated claim losses resulting from self-insurance programs which include estimated liabilities for claims incurred but not yet reported at year end, and (3) operating expenses. FJdnc:i ~rv 1~'und Tv~ Fiduciary Funds are used to account for assets held by the School Board in a trustee or agency capacity. The School Board maintains one fiduciary fund type, an agency fund. The agency fund is custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and does not involve measurement of results of operat J ons . (continued) 



Agency Fund 
St. Ta~a.y Parish School Board Covington, Louisiana Notes to Financial Statements Jl~ne ~0, 1997 

The School Board maintains one agency fund, the school Activity Agency Fund, which accounts for assets held by the Board in a custodial capac!ity. 
Account groups are used to establish accounting control and accountability for the School Board' s genera] fixed assets and general long-term debt. The account groups are not funds. They are concerned only with the measurement of financial position, not with measurement of results of opera t ions. General Fixed Assets Account Group Fixed assets used in governmental fund type operations (general fixed assets) are accounted for in the general fixed assets account group, rather than in the governmental funds. Genera] Long-TermDebt Account Group Long-term debt expected to be financed from governmental funds is accounted for in the general long-term debt account group, not in the governmental funds. 
C. BASXS OF ACCOLq~TTING Basis of accotulting refers to when recognized and reported in the financial reporting treatment applied to a fund is governmenta] fund types are accotmted measurement focus. With this 

revenues and expenditures or expenses are statements. The accounting and financial determined by its measurement focus. A]I for using a current financial resources t focus, only current assets and current liabilities generally are included on the balance sheet. Operating statements of these funds present increases (i.e., revenues and other financing sources) and decreases (i.e., expenditures and other financing uses) in net current assets. continued 



St. Tan~any Parish school Board Covington, Louisiana Notes to Financial Statements June 30, 1997 The proprietary fund type is accounted for on a flow of economic resou~c!es measurement focus. With this measurement focus, all assets and all liabilities associated with the operation of this ftuld type are included on the balance sheet. The School Board applies all applicable Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) pronouncements issued on or before November 30, 1989 in accounting and reporting its proprietary fund operations unless those pronouncements conflict with or contradict Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements. The governmental and fiduciary fund types (agency fund) are reported in the financial statements on the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under the modified accrual basis, revenues are recorded when they become both measurable and available. Available means expected to be collected within two months for property taxes and generally within the next twelve months for other revenues. Revenues not considered available are recorded as deferred revenues. The following practices in recording revenues and expenditures have been used for the governmental funds. 
Revenues Federal and state entitlements, which include state equalization and state revenue sharing, are recorded as ~irestricted grants-in-aid when available and measurable. Federal and state grants which are restricted as to the purpose of the expenditures are recorded when the reil~bursable expenditures have been made. Ad valorem taxes are recorded ~n the year the taxes are due and payable. Ad valorem taxes are assessed on a calendar year basis, based on the assessed value c,i, January i, become due on November 15 of each year, and become delinquent on Decembe~ 3].. An enforceable lien attaches to the property as of November 15. The taxes were levied by the School Board on April ]3, 1995. However, before the taxes can be collected, the tax rolls must be submitted to the State Tax Commission for approval . The taxes are generally collected in December, January, and February of the fSseal year. Property tax revenues are accrued at fiscal year end to the extent that they have been collected and are unremitted by the St. Tammany Parish Tax Collector's Oifice. Such amounts are measurable and available to finance current operations. Interest income on time deposits and revenues from rentals, leases, and royalties are recorded when earned. Sales and use tax revenues are recorded in the month collected by the St. Tammany Parish Tax Collector. Substantially all other revenues are recorded when received (continued 



Expenditures 
St. Tammany Parish School Board Covington, Louisiana Notes to Financial Statements June 30, 1997 

Salaries are recorded as expenditures when incurred. Nine-month employee salaries are incurred over a nine month period but paid over a twelve month period. Compensated absences are recognized as expenditures when leave is actua]ly taken or when employees (or heirs) are paid for accrued leave upon retirement or death, while the cost of earned leave privileges not requiring current resources is recorded in the general long-term debt account group. Commitments under construction contracts are recognized as expenditures when earned by the contractor. Principal and interest on general long-term obligations are not recognized until due. All other expenditures are generally recognized under the modified accrual basis of accounting when the related fund liability is incurred, if it is expected to be paid within the next twelve months. Liabilities which will not be liquidated with expendable available financial resources are recorded in the general long-te*~l, debt accou/~t group. The proprietary fund type is reported in the financial statements on the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized when they are earned, and expenses are recognized when they are incurred. Deferred Revenues Deferred revenues arise when resources are received before the School Board has a legal claim to them, such as when grant monies are received prior to the incurrence of Qualifying expenditures, when tuition is received in advance of the commencement of classes or when there is an inventory of donated food commodities at year end. In subsequent periods, when the School Board has a legal claim to the resources, the liability for deferred revenue is removed from the combined balance sheet and the revenue is recognized. 
(continued 



D. BUDGET PRACTICES 

St. Tammany Parish School Board Covington, Louisiana Notes to Financial Statements June 30, 1997 
The proposed budgets for fiscal year 3.997 were completed and made available for public inspection at the School Board office on August 6, 1996. A public hearing was held on August 29, 1996 for suggestions and co[[~ents from taxpayexs. The proposed fiscal year 1997 budgets were formally adopted k~ the School Board on September 12, 1996. The budgets, which included proposed expenditures and the means of financing them, for the General, Special Revenue, Debt Service and Capital Projects Funds were published in the official, journal ten days prior to the public hearings. 
The budgets for the General and Capital Projects Funds for the fiscal year 1997 were prepared on the modified accrual basis of accounting except that outstanding encumbrances at the close of the fiscal year are treated as expenditures. The Special Revenue and Debt Service Funds' budgets for the 1997 fiscal year were prepared on a modifiedaccrual basis, consistent with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAp). Formal budgetary accounts are integrated into the accounting system during the year as a management control device, including the recording of encumbrances. Appropriations are valid only for the year in which made, and any part of such appropriation which is not encumbered or expensed lapses at the end of the yea*. Current year transactions which are directly related to prior year,s budget are not rebudgeted in the current year. The level of control over the budget is exercised at the function or program level for the General and Special Revenue Funds, at the project level for the Capital Projects },knlds and at the individual debt issue level for the Debt Service Funds. The Superintendent is authorized to transfer budget amounts within each function; howew;r, any supplemental appropriations that amend the total expenditures of any fund requ~ re School Board approval. As required by state law, when actual revenues within a fund are failing to meet estimated annual budgeted revenues by five per cent or more, and/or actual expenditures within a fund are exceeding estimated budgeted e.xpenditures by five per cent or more, a budget amendment to reflect such changes is adopted by the School Board in an open meeting. Budgeted amounts included in the financial statements include the original adopted budget and all subsequent amendments. Amendments to the budget were not material. continued 



St. Tam~any P~rlsh School Board Covington, Louisiana Notes to Financial Statements June 30, 1997 The following is a reconciliation between the excess (deficiency) of ~:evenues and other financing sources over expenditures and other financing uses for the General and Capital Projects Funds as reflected in Exhibit B, which is prepared on a GAAP basis, and in Exhibit C, which is prepared on a non-GAAP basis. Because the budgets in the Special Revenue and Debt Service Funds are prepared on ~ modified accrual basis, no differences in b~dget basis and GAAp basis occur for those funds. General F~nd: Excess of[ revenues and other financing sources over expenditures and other financing uses - Exhibit B Add - prior year encumbrances liquidated Less - current year encumbrances Excess of revenues and other financing sources over expenditures and other financing uses - Exhibit C 

$5,148,005 183,284 _~295.219 
Capita]. Projects Funds: Excess of revenues and other financing sources over expenditures and other financing uses - Exhibit B $12,484,187 Add - prior year encumbrances liquidated Less - current year encumbrances Excess of revenues and other financing sources over expenditures and other financing uses - Exhibit C E. ENCUMBRANCES 

5,785,317 (7,061. 586 

Encumbrance accounting, tinder which purchase orders, contracts, and other commitments are recorded, is employed by the General Fund and Capital Projects Funds. Encumbrances outstanding at year end are reported as reservations of fund balances since they do not constitute expenditures or liabilities. As materials are subsequently received and constructiorl contracts are executed, liabilities are recorded and the related encumbrances are liquidated. continued 



St. Ta~nany I, arleh School Board Covington, Louisiana Notes to Financial Statements June 30, 1997 
F. CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND I~STMENTS Cash includes amounts in demand deposits and interest-bearing demand deposit~. Cash equivalents include amounts in time deposits. Under state law, the School Board may deposit funds with a fiscal agent organized under the 2aws of the State of Louisiana, the laws of any other state in the union, or the laws of the United States. The School Board may invest in United States bonds, treasury notes and bills, or certificates and time deposits of state banks organized under Louisiana law and national banks having principal offices in Louisiana. In addition, local governments in Louisiana are authorized to invest in the Louisiana Asset Management Pool (LAMp), a non-profit corporation formed by the State Treasurer and organized under the :laws of the State of Louisiana, which operates a local government investment pool, Investments are stated at cost. For purposes of the statement of cash flows, all highly liquid dnvestments with a maturity of three months or less at date of acquisition are considered to be cash equivalents in the Internal Service Funds. G RECEIVABLES Intergovernmental receivables consist of receivables for reimbursement of expenditures under various state and federal programs and grants. All amourlts are expected to be collected within the next twelve months. H. SHORT-TE}~ INTERFUND RECEIVABLES/PAYABLES During the normal course of operations, numerous transactions occur betweer~ funds for goods provided or services rendered. These receivables and payables, a~ well as short-term interfund loans, are classified as due from other funds or due to other funds on the coutbined balance sheet. I. INVENTORY Inventory of the School Food Service Special Revenue Fund consists of foo~ purchased by the School Board and commodities granted by the United States Department of Agriculture through the Louisiana Department of Education. The commodities are recorded as revenues and expenditures when consumed. Commodities inventory at year end is recorded as a deferred revenue. The purchased food is recorded as an expenditure when consumed. All inventory items purchased are ~alued at cost (first-in, flrst-out), and donated cosm]odities are assigned values based on information provided by the United States Department of Agriculture. continued 



St. Tammany Parish School Board Covl~gton, Louisiana Notes to Financial Statements June 30, 1997 J. GENERAL FIXED ASSETS Land, buildings and i~)rovements, and furniture and equipment axe recorded as expenditures in the governmental funds and are capitalized in the general fixed assets account group at historical cost or estimated historical cost, if actual historical cost is not available. Donated fixed assets are wllued at their estimated market value on the date of donation. Approximately 95 per cent of general fixed assets are valued at historical cost, while the remaining 5 per cent are valued at estin~ited cost, based on the historical cost of like items. The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend asset lives are not capitalized. Improvements are capitalized over the remaining useful fifes of the assets. No depreciation has been provided on general fixed assets, nor has interest been capitalized. K. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS Long-term obligations expected to be financed from governmental funds are accounted for in the general long-term debt account group. Long-term debt is recognized as a liability of a governmental fund when due, or when resources have been accumulated in the debt service fund for payment early in the followir~ year. For other long-term obligations, only that portion expected to be financed from expendable available financial resources is reported as a fund liability of a governmental fund. The remaining portion of such obligations iE; reported in the: general long-te~n debt account group. Long-term liabilities expected to be financed from proprietary fund operations are accounted for in those funds. L. COMPENSATED ABSENCES All 12-month non-school administrative employees earn from i0 to 20 days of vacation leave each year, depending on length of service with the School Board. A maximum of five days of vacation leave may be carried forward to the next calenda, year. Upon termination, earned vacation leave is paid to the employee at the employee's current rate of pay. All school board employees earn from I0 to 13 days of sick leave each yeai, depending upon the number of months employed. Sick leave can be accumulated without limitation. Upon retirement, a maximum of 25 days of unused sick leave is paid to the employee at the employee's current rate of pay, and all unused sick leave is used in the retirement benefit confutation as earned service. 
40 

continued 



St. Tammany Parish School Board Covington, Louisiana Notes to Financial Statements June 30, 1997 Any employee with a teaching certificate is entitled, subject to approval by the School Board, to one semester of sabbatical leave after three years of continuous service or two semesters of sabbatical leave after six or more years of continuous service. Leave may be granted for rest and recuperation and professional and cultural improvement. The cost of compensated absence privileges (unused sick leave) is recognized am a current year expenditure in the General Fund when leave is actually taken, or when employees are paid for accrued leave upon retirement or death, while the cost of leave privileges not requiring current resources is recorded in the general long-term debt account: group. At June 30, 1997, employees of the School Board have accumulated and vested $8,179,474 of compensated absence benefits in salary related paymentE~, which is recorded within the general long.-term debt account group since they are not payable from expendable available financial resources. M. SALES A~9 USE TAXES On June 25, 1966, the voters of St:. Tammany Parish approved a one per cent series and use tax which, after payment of necessary costs and expenses of collecting the tax, is dedicated for payments of salaries of teachers and other school personnel and for other operating expenses. On September 18, 1976, the voters of St. Tammany Parish approved a one per cent sales tax to be levied on behalf of the St. Tammany Parish School Board for a period of 15 years. On May 5, 1990 the voters of the parish authorized an extension of this tax for an additional 15 years, until expiration in 2007. The proceedE: are dedicated for the purposes of capital i~provements, maintenance, and operating expenses of the School Board. The sales and use taxes are collected by the St. Tammany Parish Tax Collector for a fee of 1.15 per cent of the monthly collections. ~. RESERVES OF FUND BALANCE Reserves on the governmental funds represent portions are not available for appropriations for expenditures segregated for future use. of! fund balances which or have been legally 
continued 



St. Tam~any Parish School Board Covingt~~, Louisiana Notes to Financial Statements June 30, 1997 O. CLAIMS /d/D JUDGEMENTS The School Board provides for losses and anticipated expenses resulting from claims and judgements including claim adjustment expenditures/expense, salvage and s~rogation. Losses resulting from claims and judgements are estimated byutillzing a case by case review of all claims in accordance with Governmental Accountin9 Standards Board Codification Section C50. The liability for such losses is recorded in the Internal Service Funds. Incurred but not reported claims as of June 30, 1997, have been considered in determining the accrued liability. P. COMPARATIVE DATA AND TOTAL COLUMNS ON COMBINED STATEMENTS Comparative total data for the prior year has been presented in the financial statements in order to provide an understanding of changes in the School Board's financial position and operations. However, comparative data (i.e., presentatio~ of prior year total by fund type) has not been presented in each of the statements since their inclusion would make the statements unduly complex and difficult to read. Total columns on the general pux~ose financial statements are captioned Memorandum Only to indicate that they sre presented only to facilitate financial analysis. Data in these columns do not present financial position or results of operations or cash flows in confo~,ity with generally accepted acco~iting principles. Neither is such data comparable to a consolidation. Interf~%~ eliminations have not been made in the aggregation of this data. 2. EXCESS OF EXPENDITURES OVER APPROPRXATIONS For the year ended June 30, 1997, the following fund had actual expenditures over appropriations, at the functional level: Fnnd amd V~*ncti~n General Fund: School administration Food service $I0,002,263 860,541 10,014,619 872,370 12,356 11,829 Actual expenditures exceeded appropriations as a result of unanticipated expenditures occurring in the month of June after the last budget revision. The excess expenditures were funded by available and appropriable fund balance. (continued 



3. AD VALOREM TAXES 
St. T-~-~y Parish School Board Covln~ton, LouiBiana Notes to Financial Statements June 30, 1997 

The following is a summary of authorized and levied parish wide ad valorem taxes for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1997: Constitutional Additional Support Construction, Maintenance and Operations Improve, Maintain and Operating Bond and Interest - District No. 12 Total millage 4. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

4.47 6.26 4.47 46.00 25.90 
At June 30, 1997, the School Board had cash and cash equivalents as follows Demand deposits Money market accounts Time certificates of deposit Total cash and cash equivalents 

$280,800 8,242,606 
Cash balances of all funds are combined to the extent possible. Interest earned on deposits is distributed to tile individual funds based on the invested balances of the participating funds during the year. Interest is recorded when earned. Under state law, the bank balances of these deposits must be secured by federal deposit insurance or the pledge of securities owned by the fiscal agent bank. The market value of the pledged securities plus the federal deposit insurance must at all times equal or exceed the amount on deposit with the fiscal agent. At June 30, 1997, cash and cash equivalents are entirely insured or collateralized with securities held by a mutually acceptable third party financial institution in the School Board's name, however, the securities may be released only upon the written authorization of the School Board, which is the lowest credit risk as defined by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. The bank balances are fully insured and collateralized at June 30, 1997 as follows: Total bank balances Federal deposit insurance Pledged securities Total collateral $i,029,432 83.264.072 ~84.29~ 



5. INVES~END?S 
St. Tammany ~'arish School Board Covington, Louisiana Notes to Financial Statements June 30, 1997 

Investments at June 30, 1997 are in the Louisiana Asset Management Pool (LAMP), a local government investment pool., xn accordance with G~C.:B Codification Sect ion I50.165, the investment in LAMP is not categorized in the three risk categories provided by GASB Codification Section I50.164 because the investment is in the poo~ of funds and thereby not evidenced by securities that exist in physical or book entry form. LAMP is administered by LAMP, Inc., a non-proflt corporation organized u:nder the laws of the State of Louisiana, and is governed by a board of directors comprised of representatives from various local governments and state wide professional organizations. Only local governments having contracted to participate in LAMP have an investment interest in its pool of assets. The primary objective of LAMP is to provide a safe environment for the placement of[ public funds in short- term, high quality investments. The LAMP portfolio includes only securities and o~her obligations in which local governments in Louisiana are authorized to invest. Accordingly, i~3~p investments are restricted to securities issued, guaranteed, or backed the U.S. Treasury, the U.S. government, or one of its agencies, enterprises, o:~ instrumentalities, as well as repurchase agreements collaterized by those securities. The dollar weighted average portfolio maturity of LAMP assets is restricted to not more than 90 days, and consists of no securities with a maturity in excess of 397 days. LAMP is designed to be highly liquid to give its participants immediate access to their account balances. 6 DUE FROM/TO OTHER FUNDS Individual balances due from/to other funds are as follows 
Fund General Fu~ld Special Revenue Funds: IASA IDEA Voc Ed Miscellaneous Programs 8G School Food Service 1966 Sales Tax 1977 Sales Tax Community Ed Total Special Revenue Funds 

Due From Q/her Funds Due To Qther Funds $2.956.026 $~08.09Q 
4].3,593 
404,817 37,818 

977,046 348,457 63,406 53,032 120,846 16,808 1,774,627 662,942 571 
856.228 4.017.735 continued 



Debt Service Funds 

St. TsamuLny Pa~.'ish School Board Covington, Louisiana Notes to Fizancial Statements Ju~e 30, 1997 

Sales Tax Bond Sinking Sales Tax Bond Reserve Total Debt Service Funds Capital Projects Funds Roofing Construction Parishwide Construction Total Capital Projects Funds Internal Service Funds Workers' Compensation Risk Management Total Internal Service Funds Total 7. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

Due From 
$166,589 

Due To Qther Funds 
$9,150 28.668 

45,837 -- 521.663 7,819 4.760 

121,997 __7.909 ~7 
__129.906 $4.676.249 ~~.676.2~ 

A summary of changes in general fixed assets are as follows 
Land Buildings and improvement Furniture and equipment Construction in progress 

Balance July i, 1996 
$5,562,04,4 143,712,039 26,919,828 46.228_4_~ 

Balance June 30, ~dditions Del~tions 1997 273,059 42,946,818 2,665,047 /J,044.003 
5,835,103 186,658,857 106,131 29,478,744 42.946.800 17.325.627 
continued 



St. Ta=~any Parish School Board Covington, Louisiana Notes to Fin~uncial Statements Jmle 30, 1997 Construction in progress at June 30, 1997 is composed of the following 
Abita Springs Middle Bayou Lacon~e Middle Covington High Fontainebleau High Fontainebleau Jr. High Little Oak Middle Little Oak Middle Lyon Elementary Madisonvil]e Elementary Mandeville Elementary Northshore High No:cthshore High Pitcher Jr. High Pontchartrain Elementary School Board Office Slidell High Slidell Jr. High Tchefuncte Middle "New" Mandeville Elementary Total 

Project Author~ $759,248 290,067 1,927,662 1,656,57l 6,168,090 552,533 1,145,771 1,023,262 784,296 1,540,095 532,982 1,360,095 505,948 1,374,406 453,021 1,653,486 1,368,287 1,463,571 

Incurred as of June 30. 19~)7 753,154 74,740 30,240 1,126 991 6,126 949 516 156 304 116 841 004 649 852 1,162 344 371 374 18 900 426 488 889 566 453 021 1,203~859 1,327 iii 1,003 490 46.272 

6,094 215,327 1,897,422 529,580 41,141 36,377 841,655 182,258 134,444 377,751 16~,608 1,341,195 79,460 484,840 0 449,627 41,176 460,081 5.70~,728 
continued 



St. Tammany Parish School Board covlng~on, Louisiana Notes to Financial Statement J11ne 30, 1997 
The School Board initiated a risk management program for workers' compensation in fiscal year 1988. Premiums are paid into the Workers' Compensation Internal Service Fund ~ all ftunds from which salaries are paid and are available to pay claims, c]aim reserves and administrative costs of the program. During fiscal year 1997, a total of $1,068,095 was incurred in benefits and administrative costs. AI~ excess coverage insurance policy covers individual claims in excess of $250,000. An amount for self-insurance losses of $815,244 has been accrued as a liability based upon an actuary's estimate. Interfund premiums are based primarily upon the individual funds' claims experience and are reported as expenditures in the individual funds. In addition, the School Board is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and destruction of assets; and natural disasters. During fiscal year 1990, the School Board established a R&sk Management Fund (an internal service fund) to account for and finance its uninsured risk of loss. Under this program, the Risk Management F~id provides coverage up to a maximum of $150,000 for each general liability claim and $150,000 for each property damage claim. The School Board purchases co~nercial insurance for claims in excess of coverage provided by the Fund. Settled claims have not exceeded this commercial coverage during the fiscal year. The Genera]. Fund of the School Board makes payments to the Risk Management Fund based on estimates of the amounts needed to pay claims and to eEtablish a reserve for catastrophic losses. That reserve was $1,215,725 at June 30, 1997 and is reported as a designation of the Risk Msnagement Fund's fund equity. The claims liability of $867,521 reported in the Fund at June 30, 1997 is based on the requirements of Governmental Accounting Standards Board which requires that a liability for claims be reported if information prior to the issuance of the financial statements indicates that it is probable that a liability has been incurred at the date of the financial statements and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. 

47 

continued 



St. TA~iny Parish School Board Covington, Louisiana Notes to Financial Statements J~]e 30, 1997 Changes in the claims liability amount in previous fiscal years were as follows: 
Workers' Compensation 1988-.89 1989-90 1990-91 1991-92 1992-93 1993-94 1994-95 1995-96 1996-97 Risk Management: 1989-90 1990-91 1991-92 1992-93 1993-94 1994-95 1995-96 1996-97 

Beginning of Fiscal Year Liability__ None $180,075 488,703 716,583 625,505 880,869 967,275 1,129,762 963,332 None $200,000 575,000 391,000 409,436 827,206 972,126 972,126 

Claims and Changes in Estimates 486,828 702,404 801,746 512,942 806,967 813,785 783,809 804,968 703,135 254,878 445,698 (37,714 301,887 819,898 539,874 920,627 462,088 

Benefit Payments Balance at And Fiscal __~aims Year-End 306, 393, 573, 604, 551, 727, 621, 971, 851, 

753 180,075 776 488,703 866 716,583 020 625,505 603 880,869 379 967,275 322 1,129,762 398 963,332 223 815,244 54,878 70,698 146,286 283,451 402,128 394,954 920,627 566,693 

200,000 575,000 391,000 409,436 827,206 972,126 972,126 867,521 The School Board continues to carry commercial insurance for all other risks of loss, including employee health and accident insurance. Settled claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded commercial insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years. 9. CHA/qGES IN GENERAL LONG-TEP/M DEBT The following is a summary of the long-term debt transactions for the year ended June 30, 1997: 
Sales Tax Bonds General Obligation Bonds Certificates of Indebtedness Compensated Absences Total 

Balance July I, 1996 $16,305,000 
Balance June 30, ~i~ions Deductior~ 1997 1,035,00[) 15,270,000 53,695,000 32,415,000 10,980,000 75,130,000 4.930.000 74,930,000 7.941.942 $82.871.942 32,415,000 521,286 ._~_~. 286 

585.0QQ 4.345.000 12,600,000 94,745,000 283.754 8.179.474 (continued 



St. Tammany Parish School Board Covington, Louisiana Notes to Financial Statements J~e 30, 1997 A schedule of the individual issues outstanding as of June 30, 1997 is as: follows: Final Original Interest Payment Issue -_E~/_L_ Due Sales Tax Bonds: 1992 $Ii,000,000 1995 _7.500.000 Total Sales Tax Bonds 18.500.000 G~neral Obligation Bonds: 1990 9,875,000 1991 30,800,000 1992 5,000,000 1993 3,540,000 1993 13,195,000 1996 25,000,000 1997 _7.415.000 Total General Obligation Bonds ~.825.000 

5.3-6.7% 5.5% 

6.6-6.9% 5.9-6.5% 5.4-9.0% 4.8-5.4% 4.7-9.0% 5.3-8.0% 4.3-5.2% 

2007 2007 

2000 2011 2012 2002 2013 2016 2010 

Interest to Principal ~/~%~ O~tstandina $2,965,685 2.222.55Q $8,620,000 6.650.000 

164,715 9,029,005 2,474,420 266,595 6,221,663 16,540,308 3.281~ 
1,210,000 23,155,000 4,435,000 1,965,000 12,370,000 24,690,000 7,305.000 

Certificates of Indebtedness 1994 .____~=000.0QQ 4.8-5.0% 2003 789~_~_Q 4.345.000 
All principal and interest requirements are funded in accordance with Louisiana law by the annual ad valorem tax levy on taxable p].~operty within the parish or by the ].977 sales and use tax. At June 30, 1997, the School Board has accumulated $9,154,157 in the debt service funds for future debt service rec~/irement s. The Sales Tax Bonds require the maintenance of a reserve as additional security fo]~ debt repayment. At June 30, 1997, the School Board has accumulated $I,850,000 in reserve and is in compliance with the requirements of the debt agreement. The sales tax bonds, general obligation bonds, and certificates of indebtedness are due as follows: (continued 



Year Ending June 30. 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003-2007 2008-2012 2013-2016 

St. Tammany Parish School Board Covington, Louisiana Notes to Financial Statements J%~e 30, 1997 Prlncin~1 payments 
Bonds $5,595,000 5,825,000 6,085,000 6,345,000 6,125,000 30,630,000 20,845,000 _J,950.00o ~'9o.4oo.ooo 

Certificates of Inde2~l~ 620,000 660,000 700,000 740,000 790,000 835,000 

Combined Interest ~avments 5,545,475 5,148,722 4,748,702 4,326,561 3,902,361 13,432,984 5,714,940 _I,136.110 

~ Total 11,760,475 11,633,722 11,533,702 11,411,561 10,817,361 44,897,984 26,559,940 ~L0,086,110 
In accordance with Louisiana Eevised Statute 39:562, the School Board is legally restricted from incurring long--term bonded debt funded solely by ad valorem taxes in excess of 35 percent of the assessed value of taxable property. At d~le 30, 1997, the statutory limit is $233,281~605 and the legal debt margin is $164,769,477. Outstanding bonded debt payable from ad valorem taxes at June 30, 1997 totaled $75,130,000. i0. DEFE~%SANCE AND ISSUANCE OF BONI)S On February 5, 1997 the School Board issued $7,415,000 of School District No. 12 general obligation bonds with an average interest rate of 5.07% to advance refund $6,970,000 of School District No. 12, Series 1990, outstanding bonds with maturities from June I, 2001 to June I, 2010 and an average interest rate of 6.85%. These series 1990 bonds are callable on June i, 2000. The net proceeds Of $7,368,339 (after payment Of $46,661 in underwriting fees and other issuance costs) plus $67,500 of sinking fund monies were used to purchase U. S. Government securities. These securities were deposited in an irrevocable trust fund with an escrow agent to provide for the future debt service requirements. The advance refunding met the requirements of an in- substance defeasance and the bonds have been removed from the general long-term debt account group. The School Board advance refunded the bonds to reduce its total debt service pa~ents over the life of the bonds by $739,657 and to obtain an economic gain (the difference between the present values of the debt service payments on the old and new debt) of $511,629. continued 



St. Tanm~any Parish School Board Covington, Louisiana Notes to Financial Statements June 30, 1997 During fiscal year 1997, the School Board issued $25,000,000 of general obligation bonds dated June i, 1996 secured by unlimited ad valorem taxation. These bonds mature from March I, 1997 through March I, 2016 and have an interest rate ranging from 5.375 per cent to 8.0 per cent. The bonds were authorized by the voters of St. Tammany Parish on April 20, 1996 and the proceeds are to bs used for the construction of new school facilities and for the improvement to existing school facilities. ii. PRIOR YEAR DEFEASANCE OF DEBT On June i, 1991, the School Board defeased the J11ne 1, 1984 School District No. 12 General Obligation Bonds maturing on or after March i, 1995. ~i February 5, 1997, the School Board defeased the June i, 1990 School District No. 12 General Obligation Bonds maturing on or after June i, 2001. On February I, 1993, the School Board defeased the June 1, 1980 School District No. 8 General Obligation Bonds maturing on or after March I, 1994. For each defeasement an irrevocable trust fund was created. New debt was issued and the proceeds were used to purchase U.S. Government Securities that were placed in the trust funds. The investments and fixed earnings from the investments are sufficient to fully se:cvice the defeased debt until the debt is called or matures. For financial reporting purposes, the debt is considered defeased and therefore removed as a liability from the School Board's General Long-TermDebt Account group. AS of June 30, 1997, the following outstanding bonds are considered defeased: 
School District No. 12 June i, 1984 June i, 1990 School District NO. 8: June i, 1980 Total 

12. TAX ARBITRAGE REBATE 

Amount Outstandina 
$6,595,000 6,970,000 ~ 2.005,000 

Under the Tax Reform Act of 1986, interest earned on the debt proceeds in excess of interest expense prior to the disbursement of the proceeds must be rebated to the Internal Revenue Service (IRS). For fiscal year 1997, arbitrage was not owed to the IRS. continued 



l~. RETIREMEnt PLANS 
St. T"~"~y Parish School Board Covington, Louisiana Notes to Financial Statements June 30, 1997 

Substantially all employees of the School Board are members of two statewide retirement systems. In general, professional employees (such as teachers and principals) and lunchroom workers are members of the Teachers' Retirement System of Louisiana; other employees, such as custodial personnel and bus drivers are members of the Louisiana School Employees' Retirement System. These systems are cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit pension plans administered by separate boards of trustees. Pertinent information, as required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 27, relative to each plan follows : A. Teachers' Retirement .qvmtem nf T.n~m~mnR ITW~ Plan Descr:iption: The School Board participates in two membership plans of the TRS, the Regular Plan and Plan A. The TRS provides retirement benefits as well as disability and survivor benefits. Ten years of service credit is required to become vested for retirement benefits and five years to become vested for disability and survivor benefits. Benefits are established and amended by state statute. The TRS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary inform~ation for the TRS. That report may be obtained by writing to the Teachers' Retirement System of Louisiana, Post Office Box 94123, Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70804-9123, or by calling (504) 925-6446. Funding Policy: Plan members are required to contribute 8.0 percent and 9.1 percent of their annua] covered salary for the Regular Plan and Plan A, respectively. The School Board is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate. The current rate is 16.3 percent of annual covered payroll for both membership plans. Member contributions and employer contributions for the TRS are established by state law and rates are established by the Public Retirement Systems ' Actuarial Committee. The School Board' s employer contribution to the TRS, as provided by state law, is funded by the State of Louisiana through annual appropriations, by deductions from local ad valorem taxes, and by remittances from the School Board. The School Board's contributions to the TRS for the years ended June 30, 3997, 1996, and 1995, were $15,127,505, $13,955,608, and $12,768,831, respectively, equal to the required contributions for each year. 
(continued 



B 

St. Tammany Parish school Board Covington, Louisiana Notes to Financial Statements June 30, 1997 
Plan I)escription: The LASERS provides retirement benefits as well as disability and survivor benefits. Ten years of service credit is required to become vested for retirement benefits and five years to become vested for disability and survivor benefits. Benefits are established and amended by state statute. The LSERS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information for the LSERS. That report may be obtained by writing to the Louisiana School Employees' Retirement System, Post Office Box 44516, Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70804, or by calling (504) 925-6484. Funding Policy: Plan members are required to contribute 6.35 percent of their a~slual covered salary and the School Board is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate. The current rate is 6.00 percent of annual covered payroll. Member contributions and employer contributions for the LSERS are established by state law and rates are established by the Public Retirement Systems' Actuarial Committee. The School Board's en~loyer contribution for the LSERS is funded by tbe State of Louisi~la through annualappropriations and by remittances from the School Board. The School ~ioard's contributions to the LSERS for the years ended June 30, 1997, 11996, and 1995 were $550,410, $524,977, and $486,322, respectively, equal to the required contributions for each year. 14. POSTEMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE AND LIFE INSURANCE BENEFITS 
In accordance with State statutes, the School Board provides certain continuing health care and life insurance benefits for its retired employees. Substantially all of the School Board's employees become eligible for these benefits if they reach normal retirement age while working for the School Board. Currently, 7]4 retirees are eligible to participate in these benefits. These benefits for retirees are provided through the State Employees Group BeD efits Program whose monthly premiums are paid jointly by the retirees and by the School Board. During fiscal year 1997, the School Board contributed 62% of the total premium for life insurance and 95% of the total premium for health care insurance provided to the retirees. The School Board recognizes the cost of providing these benefits (the Board's portion of premiums) as an expenditure on a pay-as-you-go basis when the monthly premiums are due. The School Board's cost of providing all health care benefits and life insurance premiums to the approximately 3,100 active and 560 retired participating employees amounted to $11,842,912 for 1997. For 1997, the cost of premiums paid for retirees totaled $2,289,056. continued 



15. LEASES 

St. Tammany Parish School Board Covington, Louisiana Notes to Financial Statements June 30, 1997 
The School Board has operating lease agreements for the rental of office equipment and classroom space. Rental expenditnres for the year ended June 30, 1997 are as follows: Office Equipment Classroom Space Total 16. CHANGES IN AGENCY DEPOSITS DUE OTHERS 

$284,720 156.431 
A summary of changes in the School Activity Agency P~nd's deposits due others are as follows: Balance at; Beginning of Year Additions Deductions Balance at End of Year 17. LITIGATION AND CLAIMS 

$2,128,398 8,326,853 8.I00.895 
At June 30, 1997, the School Board was a defendant in lawsuits principally arising from the normal course of operations. The School Board's legal counsel has reviewed the School Board's claims and lawsuits, which are primarily personal injury claims, in order to evaluate the likelihood of an unfavorable outcome to the School Board and to arrive at an estimate, if any, of the amount or range of potential :[oss to the School Board. AS a result of the review, the various claims and lawsuits have been categorized into "probable", ,,reasonably possible", or "remote", as defined by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. Amounts of claims classified as "probable" have been accrued in the clai~ liability and the liability for self-insurance losses, as explained in Note 8. The amoux*t of claims and lawsuits which have been classified as '~reasonably possible" individually range from $3,000 to $i00,000. It is the opinion of the School Board, after conferring with legal counsel, that the liability, if any, which might arise from these lawsuits would not have a material adverse effect on the School Board's financial position. The School Board participates in a number of federal financial assistance programs. Althouc3h the grant programs have been audited in accordance with the Single Audit Act through June 30~ 1997, these programs are still subject to financial and compliance audits and resolution of previously identified questioned costs. The amount, if any, of expenditures which may be disallowed by the granting agencies cant*or be determined at this time, although the School Board expects such amounts, ~f any, to be immaterial. 



A.c;SETS Cash and cash equivalents Investments Receivables: Ad valorem taxes Intergovemmental: Federal State Other Total receivables 
Due from other fund.~; TOTAL ASSETS 

ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD Covington, Louisiana 
GENERAL FUND Comparative Balance Sheets June 30, 1997 and 1996 

LIABILITIES AND EQLIITY Liabilities: Salaries and wages payable F'ayroll deductions and withholdings payable Accounts payable Due to other funds Other liabilities Deferred revenues 
Total Liabilities Equity: Fund balance: Reserved for encumbrances Unreserved, undesignated Total Equity TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 
See accompanying independent auditors' report 

1997 
$22,608,413 1.638.765 
691,623 41,290 264,589 195.120 1.192.622 

Statemen1_l 

13,708,837 3.054.30~ 145.510 61,070 314,710 175,612 698.902 2,956,026 2,985,940 

$13,437,920 988,470 1,990,726 608,090 85,432 67.838 
11,797,078 695,886 1,652,760 14,379 97,275 121,264 17,178,476 14.378.642 

295,219 10,920.131 
11,215.350 

183,284 5.884.061 
k6,o87,~5 20.445 967 



ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD Covington. Louisiana GENERAL FUND Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes In Fund Balance-Budget and Actual (NON-GAAP BASIS) For the Year Ended June 30. 1997 
REVENUES (Schedule 3) EXPENDITURES (Schedule 4) 

Budg~ ~lual $121.188,992 ls2Z27 6~s4 122,803,762 14~z9 272,~7 

~;hedule 2 

Variance Favorable JUnfavoreblP.J 1,614,770 3~4~55.337 DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDiTURt-S _(31,53_8~ (26,4Et8,585) ..5L070~1107 OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES): Other financing sources (Schedule 3) Other financing uses (S~ledule 4) Total other financing sources (uses) 
34,892,052 = ~2,142 2~) _32~749,852 

33,646,855 (1,245,197) 2(~4.2~20~ 31,504,655 ~1,245,197) EXCESS OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES OVER EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES 1,211,160 5,036,070 3.824,910 FUND BALANCE AI" BEGINNING OF YEAR 5,88.84 ~,~11 5 8,85~061 FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR 
See accompanying independent auditors' report 

N_ONE 3.824.910 



REVENIJES Local sources: Ad valorem taxes Tuition: Sumrcer school Driver education Earnings on investments Medical services Other Totel revenues from local sources State sources: EqualL,_ation Contributions to Teachers' Retirement Revenue sharing Professional Improvement Program Special education Adult education Non-public students Miscellaneous Tot~( revenues from stere sources Federal ~;ources: Impact aid. PL 81-874 ROTC Adult education 

ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD Covington, Louisiana GENERAL FUND Schedule of Revenues and Other Financing Sources Budget ancl Actua/(Non-GAAP Basis) For the Year Ended June 30, 1997 With Comparative Totals fm the Year Ended June 30,1996 

Total revenues from fedel~l sources Total revenues OTHER FINANCING SOURCES Operating transfers in: 1966 Sales Tax Fund 197;' Sales Tax Fund School Food Service Fund Indirect costs Total e~her financing '~oulces 

Actual 
$23,333,391 24.177,250 87.541 59,800 1,120,000 239,059 s~85 

102,815 51,597 1,375,408 239,059 __~20~277 

Vananca Favomble ~p~vorab}~ 
843,859 15,274 (8,203) 255,408 144,092 

1996 Actual 
20,124,363 87,540 59,800 1,102,.542 270,766 158.672 ._ 24~ 902~9J_6 26_,153,406 1,250,430 .2t L803,683 92,312,015 92,312,015 166,334 1.631.845 1.207.385 131,040 142.302 467.752 

169,212 1~3t,845 1,200,771 t31,374 143,725 450,898 _~439 
2,878 (6,614) 334 1,423 (16,854) _ ~3~439 _g6~q58~73 g63,38~8327g 3246~06 

215,653 
J2 I~18lt~992 
18,435,5t0 16,123,041 195.000 __ 135~5_0_1 

TOTAL REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES .~LI.~,SJ~ .044 See accompanying independent auditors' report. 

57 

256,849 10~=237 __ 267~77 122 803 762 
17,806,677 15,499,603 194,475 
~ .5B450 617 

41,157 _ (1,423) _ 39,734 

81 .,~9,868 178r603 1,650,879 1,256.489 110,571 164,953 342120 24~669 85~98,38~ 21,402 215,683 15,655 2,52,740 1~614,770 107,354,805 
(631.833) (623,438) (525) ~ 10,599 (1,245,197) 

17,323,673 14,563.810 190,638 135,50~ 32,2t~621 



EXPENDITURES Instruction: Regular Ed programs: Salaries and benefits Materiats end books Other Total Regular Ed programs Special Ed programs: Salaries and benefits Materials and books Other .Fotal Special Ed ptegran~s Vocational Ed programs Salaries and benefits Other "Fetal Vocational Ed programs Otherinstructional programs =;alades and benefits Other Total other instructional programs Special pregrams-salades end benefits Adult Ed programs: E;ataries and benefits Other .Fetal Adull Ed programs; .Fetal Instruction Support Services: Pupil support: Salades and benefits Other Total pupil supped In!dructional staff support: Salaries and benefits Materials and beaks Other 
General administration: Salaries and benefits Professional services Other Total general administration 

ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOP.RD Covington, Louisiana GENERAL FUND Schedule of Expenditures and Other Financin9 Uses Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Basis) For the Year Ended June 30,1997 With Comparative Totals for the Yesr Ended June 30, 1996 

$61,268,512 2,753,116 4.f J0__S 
Actual 
60,370,526 2,203,629 20.083 

Vadance F avorable (Unfavorable) 
697,986 549,267 21~025 

1996 Actual 
55,246,800 1,870,751 20,092 .64 ~O62,736 62,694,43_8 __'1 ~46~8 298 57~137.643 27,276,205 86,594 353~252 27,716~081 3,511.633 _ J_qT,~oo __3.,6_79~ 133 3,378,c-45 54o.992 3j919.637 

224.197 __J~,6oo _ 243:/97 9.9_,740~642 
6.009,985 ._.121 175 ~!.13=1,~60 6,256,880 302,926 ~,2~ 

27,100,968 76,654 274,5~ 27 462 408 3,384,744 _154691 3,539,635 
3,199.237 _ 322,422 3.521,659 __96,667 192,660 10,298 202,95--8 97.407.765 
5,938,300 1J 5,779 

175,217 9,740 781686 23,847,651 65354 _ ;t06,330 _~3 24~19,~35 126,88g 
_13_ 9,498 179,408 218~570 397L976 
31,537 . 9,302 ._ 40~37 =~33~,2 877 
71,685 __~396 ~54~07g 77:081 5,169.721 259,032 91,616 81,169 43,894 .=~71:3,006 5,520,369 192,637 945,465 866,071 __~.o5,659 917,912 811,309 27,556 54,762 . ~32 ?,417,fg6 .22~8 123,650 

3,289,288 ~5Z,0o6 
2,768,010 144,150 ~912~6o 135,970 163,240 33j(~ . 196,244 8~948.246 
6,370,094 j.~,3so ~474,464 4,510,765 226,105 200j961 4~93L851 887,215 871,621 _820~08f 2~678,917 



School administration: Salaries and benefits Other Toter school adminh;tr~*.ion Business administration: Salaries and benefits Other Total business administration Operation and maintenance of plant: Salades and benefits Ulilties Other 

$9,141,277 8~0@__~ 9,159,964 ~e54~6=sj 10,60;~ 2,2663 _ 10,014,619 973,834 I es,p_O_.q 969,834 180,695 1,116~~_8~" __ 1,150,529 6,797,338 3.840,000 _ __3~2~ !,_3_2j. 6,690,165 3,737,788 2,885,747 

Variance Favorable J.J.)~favo rable) 
(18,687) 6,331 _ ~2~ 3 ~) 4,000 7j305 jj~3o5 107,173 102,212 _3~574 

1996 ~~tual 
8,193,433 501,206 
867,342 221~688 ~089~30 6,133,787 3,332,105 .~942~244 Total operation and maintenance of plant 13,8858_,659 .~313,700 _.~14.959 1~408Lll 6 F'upil trem, spc~tation: Salades and benefits Other Total pupil transportation Central services: Salaries and benefits Other Tola~ central z.ewice~ Total Support Services Food sePvice-salaries and benefits Community service programs-other Faclities acquisition and construction Salaries and benefits Other Total faclities acquisition end construction Total Expenditures OTHER FINANCING USES Operating transfers out: ~,~choc4 Food Sewice F ur',~ Community Education Fund Roofing Construction Fund $50 Million Construction Fund Certificate Sinking Fund Pafishw~de Construction Fur~ Total other financing uses TOTAL EXPENDll URES AND OTHER $ tNANCING USES See accompanying independent auditors' report. 

10,342,024 378_,188 _ 10,7720j212 905,306 _ 5J_9~832 .1~425.135 
38~575 2(14,313 454,'~43 
152,727,~84 
274,000 120,000 550,000 848,200 _.3~0~000 2j142~200 

10,296.305 ~-- 332,479 45,719 45,709 9,358,860 319,997 _~_8~ _ 911428 _ 9,675,857 891,371 488,795 .. 1,380,166 .5o,3558=_~ 8723~7070 _37,304 175,024 .- 423,990 5~ 149272,347 
274,000 120,000 550,000 848,200 ~350,000 ~2342,200 151.414547 

13,935 ~31j037 _ 44~972 1,0735.~76 ~9) 1~271 29,289 . _ 30~153 _59~442 3,455~337 

_ NONE ~,455 337 

809.604 452~329 ~261,933 46~!23,797 _ 752,614 37~362 137,677 __ 8,034 145,711 135,007,730 
247~77 120,000 550,000 550,000 845,000 . pso,~oo 2~862~677 



ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD COVINGTON, LOUISIANA 

IMPROVING AMERICA'S SCHOOL ACT 

INDIVIDUALS WITH DISABILITIES EI)UCATION ACT Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA), Public Law (PI.,) 101-476, is a federally financed program of free public education in file least restrictive enviroltment for children with exceptionalities. VOCATIONAI, EDUCATION The Vocational Education (Voc Ed) Fund is a federally financed program used to expand and improve the agriculture, business, home economics, marketing and industrial arts curriculum. MISCELLANEOUS PROGRAMS 

]'he 8-G Fund is a state program to provide enhancement to elementary, secondary and vocational programs funded through the State Minimum Foundation Program. SCItOOL FOOl) SERVICE FUND 
The School Food Service Fund accounts for the federal, state and local funds used for the operations of the school cafeterias. (continued) 



ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCttOOL BOARD Covington, Louisiana 
1966 AND 1977 SALES TAX FUNDS The Sales Tax Funds account for the revenues and expenditures of the two per cent tax authorized by the voters of St. Tammany Parish for the School Board. The 1966 tax is dedicated to supplement other revenues available to the School Board for the payment of salaries of teachers and other School Board personnel and any remaining revenues to be used for the expenses of operating the schools. The 1977 tax is dedicated for making capital improvements to and paying maintenance and operating expenses of the public school system of the parish. The School Board has entered into an agreement with file St. Tammany Parish Tax Collector for the collection of the tax for a 1.15 per cent fee. COMMUNITY EDUCATION 
The Community Education Fund is a locally funded program that offers a wide variety of intbrmal leisure lem~ling classes and activities for children and adults in St. Tammany Parish. 



ASSETS Cash and cash equivalents Receivables Due from other funds Inventory TOTAL ASSI:TS 
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY Liabilities: Salaries and wages payable Accounts peys~bie Due to other funds Other liabilities Deferred revenues Total Liabilities Equity: Fund balances: Reserved for inventory Unreserved, undesignated Total Equity TOTAL LIABIL ITIES AND EQUITY 

ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD Covington, Louisiana SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS Combining Balance Sheet June 30,1997 With Comparative Totals for June 30, 1996 
II~EA Voc Ed Miscellaneous Programs _ 8G 

$731,138 421,948 66,064 107,292 127,252 413,593 

$24,333 129,796 977,046 ~558 1~144,731 

NONE $1.144.731 
See accompanying independent auditors' report. 

46,402 27,089 349,457 1,738 920 63.406 
.4~!~948 66064 
NONE NONE 66.064 

23,975 6,734 53,032 _ 2~'[. _107,292 
990 1,397 120,846 4,019 12"(,252 

NONE NONE 



 

School Food Servt~t 
1,692,163 70,3;74 404,817 163.~43 

1966 1977 Communi~ Education 
5,219 4,308 141,647 1,795,031 1,795,031 37,818 1,843,337 5,114,130 856,228 1,498,412 4,483,777 714,339 1706~67575 

15,031 28,143 16,808 25,225 95,o48 18~255 
20,621 1.774.627 20,621 662,942 68,162 571 180.631 235,321 4,017,735 25,225 _136174 

140,523 195,834 3,782,940 21,460 148,570 1,79~2=48 683,563 =68~733 _4~595~0086 ,4,289,327_ 
68,3!)5 2082,147 8,002 1~153~594 2,150542 _ 5,00_2 1 ~153,594 72,9~L4 72,91_4 141.647 

68.395 3,313.657 .3~382~52 Z.gZ.7.138 
64,286 2,513,590 2~57.577,876 8.867.203 



 

1966 ~ales Tax 1977 
18,693,165 18.693.1.=;5 69,646 

Communffy Education Totals 
37,366.310 10,105 10,105 542,886 542,886 209,266 2,336.533 32.160 1,183.518 476.805 11.~7 055 

36,332,602 11,667 418,620 171,922 2,283,964 33,671 1,183,518 659,380 1B.762.803 J~Z(~5.2~ .5~5~ 53.244.~B .~ ~7J7.~ .~512. 

702,866 910,171 491,295 159,880 119,723 8,375,806 637,669 _ 637,669 

576,986 695,513 213,852 244,068 3,186.183 17.148 697,093 049,736 466,566 191,448 127,024 7,951,587 
218,127 216,127 63"/,669 16~560 809 15,844,]161 
le,544,676 18,5,~7.107 (84,678) 36~683~82=9 35j920 411 142,965 (18,544,676) (18,515,367) 120,000 1,520,965 1,413,209 . ~7,400,61~ (36~323 63~ (18,544,676) ~18,372,402) 120,000 (35,879~653) ~.t4,9~i.Q,423) 
NONE 174.70~, 5,002 078,869 35,322 804,176 1,009,988 37,592 _ 2,577,876 1~567 888 -- 5,002 ..~1 153,5_94 __72~914 3,362,052 _.~7.7.,. ~..~_ 



REVENUES Federal sources 

ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD Covington, Louisiana IASA Special Revenue Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual For the Year Ended June 30, 1997 

EXPENDITURES Instruction: Regular Ed programs Special programs Support services: Pupil support Instructional staff support General administration Operation and maintenance of plant Pupil transportation Total expenditures EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES OTHER FINANCING USES Operating transfers out EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES ANL) OTHER FINANCING USES FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR 
See accompanying independent auditors' report. 

gudgea Variance Favorable (U nfayj~abl~ 
~,92..~022 4.6O7.'L~zO (J~4.862) 
68,865 3,474,104 314.255 549,529 30,880 139,125 

67,698 3.415.162 308,925 540,205 30,354 136,765 10.722 

1,167 58,942 5,330 9,324 526 2,360 183 ~.~t~ 4.509.8~ 77~ 
104,359 97,329 (7,030) 
~04,359~ _ (97,32~ ~ 7,030 
NONE NONE NONE NONE NONE NO.NE NONE 



RI-VENUES Local sources-other Federal sources Total revenues 

ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD Covington, Louisiana IDEA Special Revenue Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual For the Year Ended June 30. 1997 

EXPENDITURES Instruction-Special E{I programs Support services: Pupil support o Instructional staff support General administration Operation and maintenance of plant Pupil transportation Total expenditures EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES OTHER FINANCING USES Operating transfers out EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR 
See accompanying independent auditors' report. 

Budget Ac, tL~l 
$2,000 _13~.'L3Z 2,000 ~9.744 :L62..1GA~4_ 

StatemenL6 

Variance Favorable ~E[ayQrabl~) 
(1~.393} L1~9~} 

732.090 72'7.767 4.323 376,316 328,813 24,416 18,726 __1_0~,~L0 
374,094 326,871 24,272 18,615 109.001 

2,222 1,942 144 111 649 1,590,011 1,580,620 9,391 
43,126 41,124 (2,002 
_ 4~3.,_1~ _(41j 11~ _ 2,002 
NONE NONE NONE NONE NONE NONE 



REVENUES Federal sources 

ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD Covington, Louisiana Vocational Education Special Revenue Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual For the Year Ended June 30. 1997 

EXPENDITURES Instruction-Vocational Ed programs Support services-general administration Total expenditures EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR FUND BALANCE AT [-'ND OF YEAR 

B_u~Ig~ Actual Variance Favorable (L!nfavorab e) 
$262 ,_904 .2_46,45_0 (16,454) 
262,736 168 246.282 16,454 168 262,904 _ 246,460 
NONE NONE NONE NONE 

See accompanying independent auditors' report. 

164~4~ 0 NONE NONE ~O.t~E 



REVENUES Local sources: Earnings on investments Other State sources-cther Federal sources Total revenues 

ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD Covington, Louisiana Miscellaneous Programs Special Revenue Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual For the Year Ended June 30, 1997 

EXPENDITURES Instruction: Regular Ed programs Other instructional programs Special programs Support services: Pupil support Instructional staff suppod General administration Operation and maintenance of plant Total expenditures EXCESS OF REVENLIES OVER EXPENDITURES OTHER FINANCING USES Operating transfers out EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES F UND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR FUND BALANCE A"r F-ND OF YEAR 
See ac~.ompanying independent auditors' report. 

Budget 
$435 25,207 23,541 291j627 

435 17,860 20,340 2~!.6,_726 

Variance Favorable (~U~fay~rabte) 
(7,347) (3.201) (4,9Ol) .34g,810 _32.5,36~ .(15,449) 

201,842 15,823 61,560 20,810 28,018 247 4,50o 332,800 

192,692 15,106 58,769 19,867 26,533 247 4,500 317~714 
8,010 7,647 
~8,0~oj C7~647) 
NONE NONE NONE NONE 

9,150 717 2.791 943 1.485 
15.086 
(363 
363 
NONE NONE NONE 



REVENUES State sources-other EXPENDITURES Instruc:tion: 

ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD Covington, Louisiana 8G Special Revenue Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual For the Year Ended June 30. 1997 

Regular Ed programs Special Ed programs Vocational Ed programs Other instructional programs Special programs Support services: Instructional staff support Total expenditures EXCESS OF REVI-NUES OVER EXPI--NDITURES FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR 
See accompanying independent auditors' report. 

72 

Stateme.,jlLl I 

Variance Favorable dUJ1 favorabJcJ 
$470,319 456,465 (13,854) 
145,756 24,515 849 215,983 66,125 17O91 470,319 
NONE NONE 

141,463 23,793 849 209,621 64,177 16.562 456,465 
NONE NONE 

4,293 722 6,362 1.948 529 13,854 
NONE NONE NONE 



Rt-'-VENU ES Local sources: learnings on investments Food service Other State sources - Equalization FE~deral sources Total revenues EXPENDITUR('S Food service DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES 

ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD Covington, Louisiana School Food Service Special Revenue Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual For the Year Ended June 30, 1997 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) Operating transfers in Operating transfers out Total other financing sources (uses) EXCESS OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES OVER EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES FLIND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR FLIND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR 
See accompanying independent auditors' report. 

_B~d~t ~~tj.lal 
$45,000 2,304,420 5,600 1,183,518 ._4,31_7~_34 

67,104 2,336,533 12,300 1,183,518 4,30~9_~ 7,856,072 7,906,430 

~atcmcnU2 

Variance Favorable EMpfavorable.J 
22,104 32,113 6,800 (10,659) 50.358 

8,454,503 8,375,806 r 78,697 
1,258,000 .__(1_95~=o0) 1,258,000 __(19,$,475) 
1,063,000 1,063,525 
464,569 .jj55s,;~93 ~L0.20.962 

594,149 1~5555E~393 2...1.~. 542 

525 
525 
129,580 NONE 129.580 



REVENUES Local sources: Taxes-sales and u,';e Earnings on investments Total revenues 

ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD Covington, Louisiana 1966 Sales Tax Special Revenue Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual For the Year Ended June 30. 1997 

EXPENDITURES Support services-general administration EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES; OTHER FINANCING USES Operating transfers out EXCESS OF REVFNUES OVER EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR FUND BALANCE AT E-ND OF YEAR 
See accompanying independent auditors' report. 

Budget 
$19,347,110 63,o0o 

74 

,~Jnt ~me.,nLl~ 

Variance Favorable ~II, l~ ~UD.favorabl~) 
18,693,155 69.648 (653,955) ~ 8,648 19,408,110 18,762,803 (645,307) 

2316~60000 218,127 1~473 
19,176,510 18,544,676 (631,834) 
(~19,176,510J _L18,544,67_6) 631,834 
NONE NONE 5.002 5.oo2 

NONE 2 2 



REVENUES Local sources: Taxes-sales and use Earnings on investments Total revenues 

ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD Covington, Louisiana 1977 Sales Tax Special Revenue Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual For the Year Ended June 30, 1997 

EXPENDITURES Support services-general administration EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) Operating transfers in Operating transfers out Total other financing sources (uses) 

Budg~ 
$19,347,110 61~0Qo 19.408.110 18,693,155 72.079 

Variance Favorable ~avorabl~ 
(653.955) 11,079 18,7(15,234 (642,876) 

231,600 k_ 218~'127 13~473 
19,176,510 
137,000 ~19,138,8~ 
18~ =54_7,_1_g.7 (629~03) 
142,965 (18,515,367) 5,965 62~438 

(19,001,805) (18,372,402) 62~403 EXCESS OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES OVER E'XPENDITURES 174,705 174,705 NONE AND OTHER FINANCING USES FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 978,889 FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR 
See accompanying independent auditors' report 

_9Z8,887 1.1.=~3.594 NONE NONE 



REVENUES Local sources: Rentals, leases and royalties Tuition Total revenue=; EXPENDITURES Community service programs DEFICIENCY OF RE!VENUES OVER EXPENDITURES OTHER FINANCING SOURCES Operating transfers in 

ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD Covington, Louisiana Community Fducation Special Revenue Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Acuta For the Year Ended June 30. 1997 

EXCESS OF REVFNUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES OVER EXPENDITURES FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR 
See accompanying independent auditors' report. 

Budget A~,tuaL 
$10,000 540,000 10,105 

Statement 15 

Variance Favorable (U nfavoj3;3~e) 
105 ?,~p5 550,000 552,991 2,991 

668~250 _637~_669 30,581 
(118,250) (84,678) 33,572 
I_20,=00D 120,000 NONE 
1,750 .37_,_5_92 35,322 37,592 72.9~ 

33,572 NONE 33.572 



ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD COVINGTON, LOUISIANA 

SALES TAX BOND SINKING 

DEBT SERVICE FI INDS 

The Sales Tax Bond Sinking Fund is used for the repayment of bonds secured by a one percent sales and use tax. 
SALES TAX BOND RESERVE 
The Sales Tax Bond Reserve Fund is used to accumulate resources for the purpose of paying the principal and interest on the bonds secured by a one percent sales and use tax, that would otherwise be placed in default, as required by the bond agreement. CERTIFICATES SINKING The Ce11.ificates Sinking Debt Service Fund is used for the repayment of certificates of indebtedness secured by an irrevocable pledge of a special General Fund ad valorem tax of 4.47 mills. 
PARISHWIDE SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 12 The Parishwide School District No. 12 Debt Service Fund is used for the repayment of bonds secured by unlimited ad valorem taxes within the District. 



ASSETS ('ash and cash equivalents Receivables I')ue from other funds TOTAL ASSETS 
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY Liabilities: r'Due to other funds Matured bonds and interest payable Total Liabilities Equity: Fund balances-reserved for debt service "TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 

ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD Covington, Louisiana DEBT SERVICE FUNDS Combining Balance Sheet June 30, 1997 With Comparative Totals for June 30. 1996 

See accompanying independent auditors' report. 

Sales Tax Bond S~~E~ 
$506,910 2,495 166589 

Sales Tax Bond Reserve Cedificates S!~king 
1,851,130 19,441 27,538 

$9,150 28,668 
9~150 28,66B NONE 
666 844. 1,850,000 1.878.664[ 19,441 19.441 



 

Parishwide School Distdct _ No.32 
6,225,261 392,611 

~,~tement 16_ 

Totals 
8,602,742 422,644 166,589 6,992,427 154,526 __2_~6,227 
37,818 27,370 __, 90L442 NONE 37,818 1_~7,_81_2 

6,617,872 9,154,157 7,235~368 Z-35;Ll.(]O 



REVENUES Lo,~al sources: Taxes-ad vsIorem Earnings on investments Total revenues 
EXPENDITURES Current: Support services-general administration Debt service: Principal retirement Interest and bank chalges Issuance cost Total expenditures 

ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD Covington, Louisiana DEBI" SERVICE FUNDS Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Batances For the Year Ended June 30, 1997 With Comparalive 3"orals for the Year Ended June 30, 1996 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES OTHER FINANCING SOLIRCES (USES) Proceeds from bond sale Accrued interest received Operating transfers in Operating transfers out Payment to escrow agent Total other financing sources (uses) EXCESS OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES OVER EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES FUND BALANCES AT BI-GINNING OF YEAR FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR 
See accompanying independent auditors' report. 

80 

Sales Tax Bond S i_nkin~ 
$_39,298 39,298 

1,035,000 939,845 
1,974_,845 

Sales Tax Bond 
103,668 lo3,668 

NONE ~3,9~ _ 1~,B68 
1,979,796 (39,298) 

Certificates 
778 778 

585,000 255,051 
840,05! 
{839,273) 

49,968 848,200 (103,688) 
! ~o,498 .~5~'(oo~ 8482o0 
4,951 661,893 49,968 =1,80() 032 $1.850000 

8,927 !0,514 $19.441 



 

Parishwide School District No. 12 
9,958,g98 396_,981 10,355,979 
315.459 4,010,000 4,347,911 59~391 

Totals 3~97 
9,958,998 540.725 10.499.723 

8,294,665 392.~191 8,686,856 
315,459 266.894 5,630,000 5,542,807 59.391 8,732 767 11,547,657 

4,975,060 4.940.303 
!o,182_197 

1,623 218 (1,047,9=34) (1 ,'495,34~ 7,415,000 252,564 
(7,435 839) 

7,415,000 252,564 2,877,964 (142,968) 7~,4~839) 3,414,276 (124,797) 
231,725 2,966,723 3,289~479 
1,854,943 4,762,g2g 1,918,789 1,794,138 7,235 368 $9.154 157 5,441j230 



ST TAMMANY PAR.ISH SCHOOL BOARD Covington, Louisiana Sales Tax Bond Sinking Debt Service Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual For the Year Ended June 30. 1997 

REVENUES Local sources-earnings on investments EXPENDITURES Debt t=ervice: Principal retirement Interest and bank charges Total expenditures DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES OTHER FINANCING SOURCFS (USES) Operating transfers in Operating transfers out Total other financing sources (uses) EXCESS OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES OVER EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES FUND BALANCE AT BE!GINNING OF YEAR FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR 
See accompanying independent auditors' report. 

Budget &~:It~l Variance Favorable _(UJ3.favora b[~) 
$41 .O0_0 39,298 (1~702) 
1,035,000 941.045 1,035,000 939.845 1,976,045 1.974.845 
1,979,796 _('H ,O00) 1,938,796 
3,751 .661 88993 

1,979,796 _(39,298) 1,940,496 
4,951 661,693 66S.1~.4 

1,200 !,200 

1,702 1,702 
1,2OO NONE 1.200 



ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOAR[) Covington, Louisiana Sales Tax Bond Reserve Debt Service Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actua For the Year Ended June 30. 1997 
Budget 

StatemeDL19 

Variance Favorable (UnfavoraJ21~ REVENUES Local sources-earnings or investments $~9~.000 103.668 ~6~B OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) Operating transfers in Operating transfers out 49,968 ~96,000j 49,968 (103,668) Total other financing sources (uses) ~.~0~32) (57.700J EXCESS OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES OVER OTHER FINANCING USES 49,968 49,968 NONE 
FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 1,800,032 1,800,032 FLIND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR 
See accompanying independent auditors' report. 

NONE t~10.UE 



ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD Covington, Louisiana Certificates Sinking r)ebt Service Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual For the Year Ended June 30. 1997 

REVENUES Local .~;ources--earnings on inw~stments EXPENDITURES Debt service: Principal retirement Interest and bank charges Total expenditures DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES OTHER FINANCING SOURCES Operating transfers in EXCE5;S OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES OVER EXPENDITURES FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR FUND BALANCE AT END C)F YEAR 
See accompanying independent auditors' report. 

.B~ldg~~ Actual 

585,000 ..257~200 842,200 

Statement 20 

Variance Eavorabl~ 
778 178 
585,000 255,051 84o,o5~ 2,!4_9 2,!49 (=841~600) (839,273) 2,327 

848 200 848,200 NONE 
6,600 ~0,514 8,927 ~o,514 2,327 NONE 

2.~32.Z 



REVENUES Local sources: Taxes-ad valorem Earnings on investments Total revenues 

ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD Covington, Louisiana Parishwide School District No. 12 Debt Service Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual For the Year Ended June 30, 1997 

EXPENDITURES Support services-general administration Debt service: Principal retirement: interest and bank charges Issuance cost Total expenditures EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPEND)TURES OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) Proceeds from bond sale Accrued interest received F'ayrnent to escrow agent Total other fir, anc;in9 sources (uses) 

$9,828,181 325.000 9,95B,998 396,901 

~Jate.meat2~ 

Variance Favorable JJ nfavorabLe] 
130,817 71 981 !p~15&l&1 10,355~9",'9 202,79_8 

315,459 315,459 4,010,090 4,354,B50 ___59,291 4,010,000 4,347,911 __~391 8,739,600 8,732,761 .tA~SB1 .tEZB2J.~ 
7,415,000 252,564 7,415,000 252,564 

6,939 __, (100) 6,839 209,6.37_ 

231,725 _ 23=1,72~ NONE EXCESS OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES OVER EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USt.~S 1,645,306 FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 4:,762 928 FUND BALANCE AT I-ND OF-" YEAR 
See accompanyEng independent auditors' report 

1,854,943 ,762~929 6.617.872. 



ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD COVINGTON, LOUISIANA CAPITAl. PRO 11~(?T.g 'Pl TNT"D~ 
$26.5 MILLION CONSTRUCTION The $26.5 Million Construction Fund is us~ to account for the $26.5 million in bond proceeds for the construction and renovation of schools. $50.0 MILLION CONSTRUCTION The $50.0 Million Construction Fund is used 1o account for the $50.0 million in bond proceeds for the construction and renovation of schools. CERTIFICATES CONSTRUCTION The Certificates Construction Fund is used to account for the $6 million of certificates of indebtedness issued for the construction of Fontainebleau Junior High School. $25 MILLION CONSTRUCTION "/'he $25 Million Construction Fund is used to account for the $25 million in bond proceeds for the construction and renovation of schools. BUILDING COMIvlITTEE The Building Committee Fund accounts for the appropriations from the 1977 Sales Tax Special Revenue Fund and is used for unforeseen incidental projects not to exceed $5,000. ROOFING CONSTRUCTION The Roofing Construction Fund is used to account ff~r the appropriation fi'om the General Fund to provide for a systematic roofing replacement program of school facilities. PARISHWIDE CONSTRUCTION 
The Parishwide Construction Fund accounts for the appropriations from the 1977 Sales Tax Special Revenue Fund and the General Fund and is used for School Board prioritized construction throughout the school system. 



ASSETS Cash and cash equivalents Receivables Due from other funds TOTAL ASSETS 
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY Liabilities: Accounts payable Retainage payable Due to other funds Total Liabilities 
Equity: Fund balances: Reserved for encumbrances Unreserved, undesignated Total Equity TOTAL LIABILITIES AND E;QUITY 

ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD Covington, Louisiana CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS Combining Balance Sheet June 30, 1997 With Comparative Totals for June 30, 1996 $26.5 Million Constru~ 
$17,735 
$17.735 

$50 Million ~Q~tru~ti~a Certificales C~rnstruction 
4,596,177 229,079 40,648 

$25 Million Construction 
20,390,012 392,583 

6,789 389,064 4,350 124,7g0 4,309 256,606 
NONE 395~853_ _1~40 260,915 

17~Z35 $17.735 
See accompanying independent auditors' report. 

1,716,789 2..52AC1~3 4:~240,9972_ 
41,142 58,797 99,939 22g.0"~ 

5,109,570 15.412.110 20,52_~680 20.782.595 



 

Building (~ommittee 
17,813 5,000 
22.813 

Roofing E;~nstr~ti~] 
718,508 1,126 45,837 

Panshwide Constru~io~ 
493,483 549 521,66_3_ 

Statement 22 

Totals ~9_Z 
26,462,807 439,906 567,500 14,608,562 "75,894 10.702 

19,855 47,934 ~,8~ NONE . .75,608 
22~813 22,813 22.813 

96,255 593,6(38 689~863 765471 

2,284 46,611 _ 4,76_0 __.5_3,655 
97,830 
__96~04Q 1.015695 

37,587 865,005 12679 44,606 477,288 102.409 _ 915~171 62:43~30303 
7,061,586 1~493L456 26~55~ o42 

5,785,317 8,285.538 14,070,855 



REVENUES Local sources: learnings on investments 

ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD Covington, Louisiana CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances For the Year Ended June 30, 1997 With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended June 30. 1996 

EXPENDITURES Facilities acquisition end construction: .~;ite improvements Construction contracts Architect and engineers Land purchases E-quipment Other Bond issuance cost Total expenditures DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES 
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES F'roceeds from bond sales Operating transfers in Total other financing sources 
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES OVER EXPENDITURES FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR 
See accompanying independent auditors' report. 

$26.5 Million $50 Million Construction 
_ $826 400,982 

2,642 
_(1,216) 

603,740 5,128,964 315.184 87,562 11.566 
6,147,036 

Certificates ~:onstruction $25 Million 
.47~45455 ~..70.55~ 
3,469 2,022,585 49,266 136,263 207 
2,211,789 

184,869 4,724,539 388,419 271.060 56,070 30,000 
5L5~50=~) (2,1643~) (4~3~.~399) 

NONE! NONE NONE 
(1,216) 1896~ $1773s 

25.ooo.ooo 
25J:DO.0OO 

(5,746,054) (2,164,334) 20,615,6Ol 9,987.026 2264273 99.939 (93,921 20 521.680 



 

Building Comndtte~ Roofing Padshwide Construction Totals 

StatemenL2~ 

751 40,734 ~ 3~66p ~7~3~q~ _~69 

7,276 
7,276 

833,992 82,680 
1.366 
918.038 

249.992 647,228 84,011 25,147 2,263 
1,042,070 13,357,328 919,559 271,060 258,290 71.472 30.000 

716,249 6,769,546 589.146 281,074 58,712 67.682 8,482,409 (.6,525) (877.,304) (97.5~=981) (1~.5.~;~3) =(7,534~0) 
NONE 
(6,525 29,338 22.813 

55=0,000 55O,OO0 
(327,304) 1.0JE.l~Z ~89.863 

~90.000 ~9.(X)g 
114,019 #48,0~ 962040 

25,000,000 1,640.000 26.6~200 ~22 270,0C10 
12,484,187 (5,264,040) J ~OEOJ)55 2 'OJSILO~t 

93. 

19,334.895 



ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD Covington, Louisiana $26.5 Million Construction Capital Projects Fund Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Basis) For the Year Ended June 30. 1997 
REVI-NUES Local sources--earnings on investments EXPENDITURES Facilities acquisition and construction Equipment Other Excrss (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES OVER EXPENDITURES FUN[) BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR FUN[) BALANCE AT END OF" YEAR 
See accompanying independent auditors' report. 

Budget A~,.tLtal 

~chedule 24 

Variance Favorabl~ 
$750 ~92.6 ]6 
17,400 6.=i6 915 
(17,565) 3~L565 NONE 

170 17.565 .1.7.E..35 

16,744 915 
17,735 J~LONE 



ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD Covington, Louisiana $50 Million Construction Capital Projects Fund Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Batance - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Basis) For the Year Ended June 30. 1997 
REVENUES Local sources-earnings on investments EXPENDITURES Facilities acquisition and construction Site improvements Construction contracts Architects and engineers Equipment Other Total expenditures DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR 
See accompanying independent auditors' report 

Bu~g~ 

~P..h~d ule 25 

Vadance Favorable ~tual LUn fa~LOJral~e) 
750,000 4,650.000 450.000 4OO,000 35,000 6,285,000 (5,905,000) .6~9228~O20 $1.017.820 

759,220 3,742,378 195,077 91,378 
4,799.619 (4,398,637) 6,922,820 

(9,220) 907,622 254,923 308,622 _ 23,434 1,485,381 1.506,363 NONE 1.506.363 



ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD Covington, Louisiana Certificates Construction Capital Projects Fund Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Basis) For the Year Ended June 30. 1997 
REVENUES Local sources-earnings on investments EXPENDITURES Facilities acquisition and construction Construction contracts Architects and engineers Equipment Other Total e,xpenditures DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES FUND BAL,~.NCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR 
See accompanying independent auditors' report. 

Budget Actual 

Schedu~ 

Variance Favorab)e 
$~5~Ogg _,t7.4~55 2,455 
125,000 5,000 76,500 _325 20E22.5 (162,225) :t~~22.25 

94,050 3,686 52,940 207 ~i0.883 (1(13,428) ~12225 =58.7~7 

30,950 1,314 23,560 _ 518 56.~2 58,797 .NONE 58.797 



ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD Covington, Louisiana $25 Million Construction Capital Projects Fund Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Basis) For the Year Ended June 30. 1997 
REVENUES Local sources-earnings on investments EXPENDITURES Facilities acquisition and construction: ~<;ile improvements Construction contracts Architects and engineers Land acquisitions Other Bond issuance cost Total expenditures DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES OTHER FINANCING SOURCES Proceeds from bond sales 

Budget VaHance Favo~b~ 
~1.200.000 1.270~ ]9.5~ 
350,000 11,000,000 750,000 350,000 150,000 50.000 

184,869 9,497,623 724,905 271,060 56,070 30.000 12,~000 10,764~527 (11,450,000) (9,493,969) 

165,131 1,502,377 25,095 78,940 93,930 20,000 lj885,473 1.956.031 
NONE EXCESS OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES OVER EXPENDITURES 13,550,000 15,506,03f 1,956,031 FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR FUND BALANCE AT I-ND OF YEAR 

See accompanying independent auditors' report. 
$13.456 079 (93~_921) .. NONE 1.956.031 



ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD Covington, Louisiana Building Committee Capital Projects Fund Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Basis) For the Year Ended June 30. 1997 

REVENUES Local sources-earnings on investments EXPENDITURES Facilities acquisition and construction: Site improvements t.and acquisitions Equipment Other Total expenditures DEFICIENCY OF RFVE'NUES OVER EXPENDITURES FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR See accompanying independent auditors' report. 

Budget Actual Variance Favorable 
Z~_I ~,1 

5,000 3,500 20,838 7,276 700 30,038 (29,338) 29,338 NONE 
7,276 (6,525) 29 338 

5,000 3,500 13,562 700 27:762 22,813 NONE 



REVENUES Local sources-earnings on investments EXPENDITURES Facilities acquisiticm and construction Construction contracts Architects and engineers Other 

ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD Covington, Louisiana Roofing Construction Capital Projects Fund Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actua (Non-GAAP Basis) For the Year Ended June 30. 1997 

Total expenditures DEFICIENCY OF RE!VENUES OVER EXPENDITURES OTHER FINANCING SOURCES Operating transfers in 

Schedule.29 

Variance Favorable Budg~ A~,~al (Unfavorabl~) 
$25,0~g ~0~ 5.734 
1 ,OO0,00O 75,000 _ 2,5oo__ 1.077.59~ (1,042,500) 

437,749 81,827 
52.Q,9~ (480,208) 

562,251 (6,827) 1.134 ~,56.55~ 562,292 
550.0]~0 550,000 NONE EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES OVER EXPENDITURES (492,500) FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR 

See accompanying independent auditors' report, 
523.816 t,~3_t .3.1~ 

69,792 
593.6~ 

562,292 NONE 



ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD Covington. Louisiana Parishwide Construction Capital Projects FLmd Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Basis) For the Year Ended June 30. 1997 

REVENUES Local souraes-eamings on investments EYPENDITURES Facilities acquisition and construction Site improvements C.onstruction contracts Architects and engineers [Equipment Other Total expenditures DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES OTHER FINANCING .~;OURCES Operating transfers in 

~chedu[e~0 

Variance Favorable Budget A~t~l~l (Unfavor~l~) 
$27.000 32.660 5,660 
1,040,000 675,000 100,000 20,000 5,000 

334,260 525.517 85,783 34,322 _ 2,263 
705,740 149,483 14,217 (14,322 2.737 1.840.000 982~145 ~.5Z,655 (1,813,000) (949,485) 863,515 

1~090.000 J.090.000 NONE EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES OVER EXPENDITURES (723,000) 140,515 863.515 FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR 
See accompanying independent auditors' report. 

723,69~ S6~S _72~695 _NONE 883.515 



OPERATING REVENUES Employer contributions Insurance proceeds 

ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD Covington, Louisiana PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE INTERNAL SERVICF FUNDS Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Retained Earnings For the Year Ended June 30, 1997 With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended June 30, 19!)6 
Workers' G~ml~nsation 
$1,207,119 

Risk 
1,284,949 93.755 Total operating revenues ~ 1,207,119_. 1,3_78_,7~ OPERATING EXPENSES Contractual services Premium payments Benefit Payments Claims Decrease in provision for self-insurance losses Other operating expenses Total operating expenses 

OPERATING INCOME NON-OPERATING REVENUES Earnings on investments NET INCOME 

104,875 111,997 851,223 
(148,088) 
920.007 

118,863 707,354 566.693 (lO4,605) 9.018 

.8~;3t.ement32 

Totals .199Z 
2,492,068 93.755 2,849,070 825 564 2,585,823 3,674,634 
223,738 819,351 851,223 566.693 (252,693) 9.018 

197,282 808,636 971,398 920.627 (166,430) 8,--803 1,297,323 2,217,330 2,740,316 
287,112 81,381 368,493 934.318 
86.904 135,780 222.684 187,~13 374,016 217,161 591,177 1.121.831 RETAINED EARNINGS AT B[-'GINNING OF YEAR __ 685,90_3. RETAINED EARNINGS AT END OF YEAR ~J~9_~9j9 

See accompanying independent auditors' report. 
"I(X) 

998,564 16~68484~467 562~636 



ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD Covington, Louisiana PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE INTERNAl.. SERVICE FUNDS 
Combining Statement of Cash Flows For the Year Ended June 30, 1997 With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended June 30, 1996 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES Cash received from employer contributions ~nsuraf~ce proceeds Cash payments for: Benefits end claims Insurance premiums Other Net cash provided (used) by operating activities CASH FLOWS FROM IhlVESTING ACTIVITIES Earnings on irlvestments NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS CASH ANb CASH EQUIVALENTS A'T BEGINNING OF YEAR CASH AND CASH EQUWALENTS AT END OF YEAR 

Workers' GompeJ~atioa 
$1,085,122 
(849,495) (111,997) ( 1 _o4~8~ 

Risk Manaaement 
1.277.040 93,755 (685,123) (707,354) 

Totals 
2,362,162 93.755 (1,534,618) (819.351) 2(~ 

3,108.779 600.000 (1,774,864) (808,636) _ (171084) 
18,755 (149,413) (130,658) 954 195 
81,690 
100,645 
.597,92_2 

_J29~655 (19,758) 
2.496,154 

_ 211,545 
80,887 
4,094,076 

182.334 
1.136.529 
2.957,547 

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided (used) by operating activities: Operating income Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash provided (used) by operating activities: Decrease in provision 1or self insurance losses Changes in assets and liabilities: (Increase) decrease in receivables Increase (decrease) in payables Decrease in deferred revenue Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 
See accompanying independent auditors' report. 

$267,112 81,381 368,493 934,318 
(148,o88) (121,997) 1.728 

(104,605) (252,693) (166,430) (7,909) (129,906) 294,710 (118,280) (116,552) 
_.$18~_7755 _(149,413) 
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117,431 _(225,834 
954.195 



 



ASSETS Cash and cash equivalents 
LIABILITIES Deposits due others 

ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD Covington. Louisiana SCHOOL ACTIVII"Y AGENCY FUND Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities Year Ended June 30. 1997 
Balance JulyJ~1996_ AclditiEL,S_ De~k~J~ls Balance J~2LO~ .1997 

See accompanying independent auditors' report. 
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S.chool Mandeville Kindergarten Abita Springs Elementary Abney Elementary Alton Elementary, Bayou Woods Elementary Bonne Eagle Elementary Brock Elementary Chahta-lma Elementary Covington Elementary Cypress Cove Elementary Florida Ave. Elementary Fotsom Elementary Honey IsLand Elementary Lyon Elementary Madisonville Elementary Mandeville Elementary Pontchartrain Elementary 

ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD Covington, Louisiana 

Riverside Elementary Whispering Forest E-lementary Woodlake Etamentary Covington Special Ed. Abita Springs Middle Bayou Lacombe Middle Carolyn Park Middle Little Oak Middle Mandeville Middle Pine View Middle Schoen, C.J. Middle Tchefuncte Middle Boyet Jr. High Clearwood Jr, High Fifth Ward Jr. High Folsom Jr. High Fontainebleau Jr. High Lee Road Jr. High Madisonville Jr. High Mandeville Jr. High Pearl River Jr. High Pitcher Jr. High St. Tammany Jr. High Sixth Ward Jr. High Slidell Jr. High Covington High Fontainebleau High Mandeville High Northshore High Pearl River High Salmen High Slidell High TOTAL 

SCHOOL ACTIVITY AGE:NCY FUND Schedule of Changes in Deposits By School For the Year Ended June 30, 1997 Balance July 1, _199~i. $6,947 33,178 20,281 556 13,591 37,719 17,944 6,646 66,872 17,938 11,830 6,733 25,812 21,316 18,404 20,125 94,367 t4,591 17,020 22,357 383 30,643 12,341 20,420 26,633 45,546 5,204 10,168 68,539 60,929 29,719 41,334 5,044 0 5,641 26,175 53,576 35,281 24,504 60,474 18,687 101,669 211,254 103,164 234,280 106,825 54,777 123,987 11_6,774 

47,712 65,377 121,497 17,649 68,617 143,353 28,826 37,738 160,833 83,296 38,079 51,932 105,069 79,500 98,851 150,056 220,163 54,925 76,526 182,799 4,946 87,083 24,574 197,881 153,209 241,663 41,621 61,155 163,766 162,335 221,052 98,742 55,550 198,436 160,798 106,140 286,961 57,767 127,393 107,069 74,420 176,696 702,977 628,852 534,906 406,018 279,381 543,706 5z8,g36 

51,807 68,713 120,594 16,666 66,121 154,611 33,394 37,358 167,191 84,419 32,031 55,668 110,568 72,736 93,752 143,477 231,675 51,853 68,484 192,667 4,621 94,016 25,004 200,330 155,754 228,169 43,990 52,776 195,463 181,969 220,489 97,038 42,782 144,306 150,411 112,751 288,996 69,706 124,677 106,301 70,406 165,202 B51,990 563,610 562,249 377,687 256,816 490,~35 578.466 

Balance June 30, 1997 2,852 29,642 21,184 2,539 16,087 26,461 13,376 7,026 70,514 16,617 17,878 2,997 20,313 28,080 23,503 26,704 82,855 17,663 25,062 12,489 708 23,710 11,911 17,971 24,088 59,040 2,835 8,547 36,842 61,295 30,282 43,038 17,812 54,130 16,028 19,564 51,541 23,362 27,220 79,242 22,901 113,163 262,241 168,406 206,937 135,156 77,342 177,556 117,244 
See accompanying independent auditors' report 105 



General fixed assets: Land Buildings and improvements Furniture and equipment Construction in progress Total general fixed assets 

ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD Covington, Louisiana GENERAL FIXED ASSETS ACCOUNT GROUP Schedule of General Fixed Assets- By Source June 30. 1997 

Investment in general fixed assets from General and Capital Projects Funds IASA funds Vocational education funds Other funds Total investment in general fixed assets 
~ ~;ee accompanying independent auditors' report. 

]07 

~chedule 37 

$5,835,103 186,658,857 29,478,744 17,325,627 
$231,018,896 3,530,234 969,990 _ ~9 211 



[:unction Support services: Pupil support Instructional staff support General administration Business and central services Operation and maintenance of plant Pupil transportation Tet.al SUppOrt ServiCErs 
Construction in progress Total general fixed assets 

ST TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD Covington. Louisiana GENERAL FIXED ASSETS ACCOUNT GROUP Schedule of General Fixed Assets-By Function June 30, 1997 

See accompanying independent auditors' report. 

Lar~l 
$5,768,103 
50,000 17.000 

Buildings and In lpJ~oxe, me, nt ~ 
182,122,736 1,497,860 613,151 1.241.583 1.183,527 

Fumitura and Eq uiprAerjt ~[&:~_t~.] 
19,340,619 383,683 2,998,501 3.437.281 3,023,476 295,204 

207,231,458 1,881,523 3,611,652 4.728.864 4,224,003 295.204 221.972.704 
17~325~27 



Abda Springs Elementary Abita Spdngs Junior High Abney Elementar~ At~On Elem~IB~ Bayou Lscombe Junior Bayou Woods Elemenlary Bonne Ecole Elementary Boyet Junior Brock Elementary Carolyn Park Middle Chahta Ima Elementary Cleawvood Junior Covington Annex Covington Elementary Covington High Covington Special Ed Center Harrison Curriculum Center Covington Warehouse- Covi~gto~ Edu~.~li~al Cenlel Cypress Cove Elementary 5th Ward Junior Flodda Avenue Elementary Folsom Elementary Folsom Junior Fontainebleau High Fontainebleau Junior High Honey Island Elementary Lee Road Junior Little Oak Elementary Lyon Etemerltary MadisonvilJe Elementary Madisonville Junior Mandeville Elementary Mandeville High Mandeville Junior High Mandevitle Kindergaden M a r..devitle M~dle "New" Mandeville El~tmantary Northshore High Operation Jumpstart Pearl River High Pearl River Junior High Pine V=ew Middle pitch, at, Wm Junior High Pontchartrain Elemerdary Riverside Elementary St Tammany Junior High Slidell Curriculum Center Slidefl Pupil Appraisal $almen High $chc.en, C.J. Middle School Board Office Bth Ward Junior $1idell Annex $1idell High Slidell Junior Itigh $1idell Support Facildy $1idell Warehouse Chinchuba Middle Whispering Fores1 Ek.~mentary Woodlake Elementary Other TOTAL See accompanying independenl auditors* report. 

Covington, Louisiana GENERAL FIXED ASSETS ACCOUNT GROUP Schedule of General Fixed Assets-By LOCation June 30.1997 
$5,000 53,050 14,000 47,000 30,700 53.942 26,750 42,363 36,180 5,000 26.750 27.850 85,000 50,0go 50.000 140,000 34,500 10.000 438,900 25.500 46,475 14,500 41.180 610.000 478,150 423,010 35.500 36,190 9,800 15,000 48.750 19.500 189,250 24,360 20,000 126,000 273,059 400,000 60,120 15,500 24,000 9,642 336,001 160,000 46,807 58,000 20.000 2,658 16,000 2,289 66,386 16,500 7,O0~ 336,001 620,00(I 26,00[] 
1C)9 

Buildings and JlnDrovements 
2,606.596 1,907,920 3,327,385 1,700,822 2,032,579 3,892,828 3.385,290 3.844,938 2,639,781 2,164.681 2,215,403 5.214,705 600.583 2,441,000 8,213,249 1,242,020 734,000 196,000 613,151 4,594,678 3,235.280 4,157,721 3,109,575 1,809.046 11,896,736 2,971,597 3,018,385 3,144,081 2,492,419 1,743,030 2,260,326 2,313,743 7.578.425 3.077.497 738,000 3,498,947 7,340,970 6,189,332 3,828,022 1,859,000 4,844,625 4,803,963 3,004,207 5,522,000 

Furniture and E~Jipme~ 

671.419 49,291 628,661 ~09,630 296,783 610,937 299.648 238,592 577,624 279,298 59,210 935.728 262,749 2.526,026 503,391 139,644 1,487,765 643,956 308,950 299,274 368,525 247,865 333,743 ~86~774 

5,000 3,019,503 2,300.334 3,827.072 2,935,956 2,415,199 4,321,107 3.665,639 4.395,989 2,992,144 2,674,762 2,499,990 5.706,112 806,932 3,028,272 9,515,104 1,306,188 1,639,111 t.513,670 t ,91B,435 5,345,468 3,650,622 4,514,410 3,500,626 2,122,535 13,212,307 762,470 3,715,902 3,430,681 3,551,505 2,877,404 1.687,130 2,618,654 2,671,717 8,85B,907 3,594,203 906,574 4,088,338 273,059 8.612,389 49,281 6,878,113 4,253,202 2,179,783 5.362,204 5.439,612 3,402,799 6,146,431 279,298 823.070 7.814.214 2,490,625 3,087,684 4,802,078 223.933 10,040,146 5,013,456 482,398 464,695 5,505,488 3,764,525 2,561,472 188,974 



 



ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD Covington, Louisiana General Fund Expenditures by Function t.ast Ten Fiscal Years (Unaudited) 
Fiscal Regular Ed ~'~r Proorams 1988 $34,385,885 1989 36,926,187 1990 42,900,676 1991 47,068,409 1992 51,890,115 1993 46,931,281 ~) 1994 49,476,931 1995 54,674,839 1996 57.176,090 1997 62,535,271 

Spe~~ial Ed ~r~;~rams $8,368,714 9,503.905 12,035,252 13,433,528 15.928,025 17,156,796 19,221,373 2"1,853,260 24,119,662 27,452,174 

Other Proorams $120,696 122.193 132,445 179,180 195,202 4,802,657 (2) 5,204,179 6,125,842 6,693,220 7,357,686 

Pupil Support $2,467,403 2,643,952 3,058,066 3,705,155 4,236,496 4,359,334 4,621,729 5,216,295 5,474,147 6,950,112 

InstpJctional Staff General School Business ~gl~gOl~ Administration Administration AdminiM[ittlQrl $1,558,907 1,446,032 1,758,051 2,117,557 2,132,928 3,851,302(2) 4,315,790 4,825,474 4,938,319 5,519,268 I) Includes General Fund contribution to certain employee benefit programs In prior years, such amounts were inc~uded as Support Services-General Administration expenditures. ('!) Beginning in 1993, the Louisiana State Department of Education reclassified the reporting of certain expenditures 1o comply with the U. S. Department of Education requirements. 

11.2 

$1,589,882 1,354,570 1,535,347 1,660,284 1,658,027 1,679,544 2,076,696 2,021,695 2,566,886 2,308,558 

$4,672,031 4,971,483 5,986,219 6,383,830 6,945,273 6,807,562 7,255,193 8,192,367 8,740,377 10,009.169 

$511,108 535,820 696,643 726,010 767.379 809,538 878.286 1,059.538 1,096.043 1.149.804 



Operat,on and Maintenance of Pupil P~mt ~Z~S~~tatk~1 $7,605.243 7,680,994 8.179,066 8,~96,274 9,664,734 6,617,683 10,'~08,114 11,595,233 12,408,116 13,285,388 

$5.794.127 5.905,296 6,230,516 6.969,5(~6 7,628,144 7,949,159 8,279,239 8.924.263 9,678,857 10,628,066 

Central Activities $935,320 615,992 967,061 909,479 1,069,425 914,315 1,393,556 1,118,305 1,253,259 1,394,746 

Food ~ervicetl~ $257,255 318,375 386,562 479,769 534,686 224,944 643,288 690,666 752.614 872,370 

Community Facilities Service ACquisition and f ~g~111]~ Const ructioj~ Debt Servioe ]~ta] 

].13 

$16,166 13,682 19,605 17,893 15,807 17,826 28,911 27.064 36,788 37,885 

$720,332 468,511 1,120,208 1,004.621 171,347 119,329 103,234 154,225 145,711 656.912 

$113,438 113,961 256,986 103,632 146,942 124,766 41.283 67.724 
$69,316,507 72.620,653 85.262,795 93.755,207 102,884,530 105.566,330 113,945,602 126,546,790 135,080,089 149.160.412 



Fisca Ye~ 1988 1989 1990 1991 1992 1993 1994 1995 1996 1997 

ST. 1AMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD Covington, Louisiana General Fund Revenues by Source Last Ten Fiscal Years (Unaudited) 
Ad Valorem ~Z~~~ ~JJ.tLo~ $11,998,719 13,049.399 14,073,893 14,807,912 14,774,495 15,927,647 17,190,593 19,032,717 20.124,363 24,177,259 

$242,113 214,240 194,671 153.709 131,280 127,440 125,251 149,401 147,340 154.412 

Earnings on byPz~m.~s Qthe~ Eo ualiz, at~oJ3 $535.441 835,053 1,242,729 725,980 416,033 305,332 431,975 805,002 1,102,542 1.375.406 

$84,472 150,765 370,155 374,635 273,598 440,930 364,158 427,091 429,438 446,336 (1) There were no State contributions during the years indicated 

114 

$32,505,410 43,403.417 49,897,679 54,505,644 60,286,621 63,351,967 69,921,213 76,660,386 81,569,868 92.312,015 

Contributions to Teachers' ~tirement $3,177,733 156,689 1,247,866 199.525 253.829 223,120 202,627 190,291 178,803 169,212 



---State Contribution to Group insurance 972,193 (1) (1) (1) (1) (1) (1) (1) (1) (1) 

Revenue 
$1,326,316 1,518,214 1,458,168 1,4!)6,535 1,510,416 1,514,148 1,541,151 1,589,300 1,650,879 1.631.845 

Professional mprovement Program ~tb~.r_ $1.608,514 1,536,547 1,509,299 1,445,831 1,411,729 1,393,496 1,332,784 1,292,745 1,256,489 1.200,771 

$1,088,656 507,476 589,026 792,855 690,476 785,952 1,205,323 2,176,624 642,343 1.0~;9.436 

Federal Sources I~ $382,304 389,793 378,668 423,513 414,764 265,412 265,425 347,557 252,740 267.077 

$54,921,771 61,761,593 70,962,154 74,926,139 80,163,241 84.335,644 92,580,500 103.651,114 107,354,805 122,803,762 



Fi,c;cal Total Tax LeyY $17,993,~H9 18,656,854 20,319,888 21,009,132 21,724,940 22,249,929 24,221,576 26,111,200 28,304,369 33,989,981 

ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD Covington, Louisiana Property Tax Levies and Collections Last Ten Fiscal Years (Unaudited) 
Current Year Tax Levy (~j)ll~ctions .(.1) $16,388,551 17,516,386 18,793,780 19,786,930 20,067,618 21,238,827 23,031,420 25,686,081 27,432,575 32,981,367 

Percentage of Total Current Current Year Year Total Tax Collections Outstanding D_oJ~EttoQS/l~ ~o Tax Le~ $17,262,025 18,592,359 20,039,064 21,084,552 21,030,223 22,499,923 24,272,958 26,881,093 26,419,028 34,136,248 (1) Source: St. Tammany Tax Collector's Office 
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91.1% 93.9% 92.5% 94.2% 92.4% 95.1% 95.1% 98.4% 96.9% 97.0% 

$1,604,789 1,140,468 1,526,108 1,222,202 1~57,322 1,011,102 1,190,156 425,119 871,794 1.008,614 

Percentage of Current Year Outstandin9 Taxes to 3-~_Leyy 8.9% 6.1% 7.5% 5.8% 7.6% 4.5% 4.9% 1.6% 3.1% 3.0% 



Fiscal )Eear Real Estate Assessed YalU0 1988 $324,556,521 1989 335,088,035 1990 355,038,746 1991 358,244,887 1992 367,269,774 1993 374,560,203 1994 398,500,909 1995 420,818,901 1996 453,039,166 1997 532,174,889 

Commercial and Other Property Assessed Y~Iu~ $77,506,480 75,324,290 81,964,860 89,487,870 93,337,772 95,970,349 104,160,566 115,744,760 124,016,650 134.343,983 

ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD Covington. Louisiana Assessed and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property Last Ten Fiscal Years (UneudRed) 
Total Assessed Yalue $402,063,001 410,412,325 437,003,606 447,732,767 460,607,546 470,530,552 502,661,475 536,563,661 577,055,816 666,518,872 Source: St, Tammany Perish Assessor's Office 

Homestead Exemption Yalue $186,458,448 191,973,567 199,066,524 201,720,288 206,198,073 215,077,907 224,572,278 236,779,583 252,691,848 276,278,015 
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To~I Assessed Value 
$216,604,553 218,438,758 237,937,082 246,012,469 254,409,473 255,452,645 278,089,197 299,784,078 324,963,968 390,240,857 

Total Estimated Actual Yalue $3,643,815,343 3,853,042,283 4,096,819,860 4,045,101,470 4,158,034,513 4,246,180,037 4,534,965,530 4,829,278,397 5,201,903,433 6,058,688,723 

TableA 

Percentage of Total Assessed Value to "T oral Estimated i~tua] Value 11 0% 10 7% 107% 111% 111% 11 1% 111% 111% 11 1% 110% 



Fiscal 
1988 1989 1990 1991 1992 1993 lq94 1995 1996 1997 

ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD Covington, Louisiana Property Tax Rates (per $1,000 of Assessed Valuation) All Direct end Overlapping Govemments Last Ten Fiscal Years (Unaudited) 
School Board Mi II!aga 83.07 85.41 85,41 85.41 85.41 87.10 87.10 87.10 87.10 87.10 

Governments (Parishwide) 
Police Jury Millage 27.84 17.83 17.83 17.83 17.83 18.35 18.35 18.35 18.35 20.82 Source: Respective Taxing Jurisdiction 

Law Enforcement MVta~ 12.42 12.58 12.58 12.58 12.58 12.94 12.94 12.94 12.94 12.94 

11.8 

Assessor Millage 3.00 3.12 3.12 3.12 3.12 3.21 3.21 3.21 3.21 3.21 

City of Abita Springs Millage 17.65 18.17 18.17 18.17 18.17 19.18 19.18 19.18 19.18 19.70 



 

City of Covington Millage 8.06 20.60 20.60 20.60 20.60 19.60 18.60 18.25 26.80 24.55 

City of Madisonville MLIla~ 16.17 16.34 15.46 13.32 12.30 12.80 13.80 11.30 11.30 11.52 

Governments (Special Districts) City of Mandeville Millage 19.70 18.95 18.96 18.95 18.95 18.25 18.25 19.18 17.95 17.60 

City of Pearl River 
5,73 5.83 5.83 5,83 5.83 5.83 5.83 5.83 5.83 5.83 

City of Slidell Millage 36.91 37.62 36.91 36.38 36.51 36.44 35.11 33.93 33.93 37.54 

Table 5 

301.91 299.43 322.98 351.84 354.95 393.83 395.64 398.52 428.28 433.18 



 



 



Fiscal y~a[ 1988 1989 1990 1991 1992 1993 1994 1995 1996 1997 

Number of 
26,739 26,779 26,656 27,523 28,522 29,282 30,504 31,412 31,852 32,677 

State 
$42,280,925 47,640,131 55,236,164 58,774,488 64,480,323 67,606,305 74,732,474 83,704,980 87,141,280 98,043,602 

ST. TAMMANY PARISI-I SCHOOL BOARD Covington, Louisiana State Support and Local Support Per Student Last Ten Fiscal Years (Unaudited) 
State Total Support per Student Student E.~'~.~(JJ $1,581 1,779 2,072 2,135 2,261 2,343 2,450 2,665 2,736 3,000 (1) Consists of General Fund and Special Revenue Funds. Effective f~scal year 1991, the School Food Service Special Revenue Fund is included. 

$72,924,192 76,109,428 95,393,407 103,879,133 113,913,754 117,639,147 128,200,620 141,910,870 150,924,250 165.721.221 
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Total Cost per Student $2,727 2,842 3,579 3,774 3,994 4,017 4,206 4,518 4,738 5,071 

Local ,.~Llpport(1) $31,005,507 33,273,251 37,580,748 3~1,116,809 40,901,507 44,448.991 49,726,002 54,184,671 61,056,129 68.670,666 

Local Support per Student $1,160 1,242 1,410 1,421 1,434 1,518 1,630 1,725 1,917 2,040 



Fiscal 
1988 1989 1990 1991 1992 1993 1994 1995 1996 1997 

Nurrlbe r of 

ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD Covington, Louisiana Ratio of Net General Obligation Debt To Assessed Vak=e and Net Bonded Debt per Capita and Per Student Last Ten Fiscal Years 
1abJ~. 9 

Percentage of Less Net Ek:x~ded Debt Net Bonded Net Bonded Assessed Gross Boeded Debt Service Nat Bonded to A.&sessed Debt per Debt per Value/21 ~P~) ~D~4J ~ ~ ~ ~I~i~ $402,063.001 410,412,325 437,003,606 447.732,757 460,607,546 470,530,552 502,661,475 536,563,661 577,055,816 666,518,872 (I) Source: Louisiana Technical University (2) From Table 4 

$48,310.000 43,395,000 38,145,000 56,040,000 49,255,000 50,320,000 60,260.000 57,165,000 53,695,000 75,130,006 
(3) General obligation bonds (,1) Amounl available for repayment of general obligation bonds 

$6,421,227 6,904,860 7,868,607 7,269,603 2,822,642 2,804,369 2,743.386 3,536,974 4,762,929 6,617,872 

]Z3 

$41,888,773 36,490,t40 30,276,393 48,770,397 45,432,358 47,515,631 57,516,614 53,628,026 48,932,071 68,512,128 

10.4 8.9 6.9 10.9 9.9 10.1 11.4 10.0 8,5 10.3 

$287 246 203 337 307 310 369 326 287 392 



Fiscal 
1988 1989 1990 1991 1992 1993 1994 1995 1996 1997 

ST. TAMMANYPARISHSCHOOLBOARD Covington, Louisiana Percentage of Annual Debt Service Expenditures For General Bonded Debt to Total General Fund [:xpenditures Last Ten Fiscal Years (Unaudited) 
,~;4,615,000 4,915,000 5,250,000 5,610,000 6,785,000 4,065,000 3,710,000 4,115,000 4,975,000 5.630.000 

$4,096,078 3,785,435 3,466,280 3,724,922 3,433,641 4,020,050 4,451,363 4,664,815 4,927,773 5,532,069 

Total Debt 
$8,711,078 8,700,435 8,716,280 9,334,922 10,218,641 8,085,050 8,161,363 8,779,815 9,902,773 11,162,069 

~ble 10 

Percentage of Total Debt Service General Fund to General Fund Exoenditures Expenditures $69,316,507 72,620,953 85,262,795 93,755,207 102,884,530 105,566,426 113,945,802 126,546,790 135,080,089 149.160.412 

12.57% 11.98% 10.23% 9.96% 9.93% 7.66% 7.16% 6.94% 7.33% 7.48% 



 



Fiscal 
1988 1989 1990 1991 1992 1993 19~4 19'95 19~6 1997 

146,018 147,274 149,340 144,508 148,137 153,351 155,990 164,394 170,321 174,856 

ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD Covington, Louisiana Demographic Statistics Last Ten Fiscar Years (Unaudited) 
Table 12. 

---Public Schools. Private Schools--- Total Number of Number of Students Students 30,546 30,623 30,425 31,286 32,476 32,840 34,640 35,768 36,772 37,801 (1) Source: Louisiana Technical University 

26,739 26,779 26,656 27,523 28,522 29,282 30,504 31,412 31,852 32,677 

Percentage of Number of Students to Number of IQi~.c~Ld~ Student~ 
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86.7 87.4 87.6 68.0 87.8 89.2 88.1 87.8 86.6 86.4 

3,807 3,844 3,769 3,763 3,954 3,558 4,136 4,356 4,920 5,124 

Percentage of Number of Students to Iota1 Students 13.3 12.6 12.4 12.0 12.2 10.8 11.9 12.2 13.4 13.6 



Calendar Year 1987 1988 1989 1990 1991 1992 1993 1994 1995 1996 

ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD Covington, Louisiana Property Value and Bank Deposits Last Ten Calendar Years (Unaudited) Estimated Actual Property Value $3,643,815,343 3,853,042,283 4,096,819,860 4,045,101,470 4,158,034,513 4,246,180,037 4,534,965,530 4,829,278,397 5,201,903,433 6,058,688.723 (1) Consists of deposit liabilities of major banks and savings and loan institutions domiciled in St. "Tammany Parish. Source: Annual Report of the Office Of Financial Institutions, State of Louisiana. Note-Doe.,; not include construction because neither the parish nor the numerous municipal governing authorities maintain this information. 

].2'7 

~[~bte 13 

Bank D epo~ $548,054,434 510,098,652 249,031,875 260,475,000 296,067,000 302,235,000 294,135,000 288,612,000 33,948,000 37,082.000 



Ray A. Alfred E. Roth Allen Edward J. Fielding Charles 3". Harrell Neal M. Hennegan John C. Lamarque (2) Robert C. Lehman (3) Mary K. Lynch James Panks Gregory J. Saurage Albert R. Smith Anthony J. "Fedesco Betty Ver-zwyvelt Donald J. Villere (4) Patti Young Daniel G. Zechenelly 

ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD Covington, Louisiana Schedule of Compensation Paid to Board Members For the Year Ended June 30,1997 (Unaudited) 

(1) President July through December 1996 (2) President January through June 1997 (3) Served July 1996 (4) Served August 1996 through June 1997 The Schedule of Compensation Paid to Board Members was prepared in compliance with House Concurrent Resolution No. 54 of the 1979 Session of the Louisiana Legislature. The compensation of the School Board members is included in the general administrative expenditures of the General Fund. In accordance with Louisi;]na Revised Statue 17:56, the School Board members have elected the monthly payment method of compensation. Under this method, each member of the School Board receives $800 per month and the President rc;ceives $900 per month for performing the duties of his office. 
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Tabte 14 

$9,600 9,600 10,200 9,600 9,600 10,200 8OO 9,600 9,600 9,600 9,600 9,600 9,600 8,671 9,600 9,600 



12EGP, EE Bachelor's Degree Master's Degree Master's + 30 Education Specialist Doctorate Totals 

Totals 

0-5 6-10 11-14 15-19 20-24 25-over 
Year of incorporation Form of government: Area of parish: Regular School Days Population: 

ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD Covington, Louisiana 

Elementary Middle Junior Senior 
22 8 13 7 ,59 

Miscellaneous Statistical Data June 30, 1997 (Unaudited) 
1,237 685 236 22 12 

,001 464 274 209 146 98 2.1.92 
1900 School Board President 1,141 square miles 180 174.856 
Elementary Middle Junior Senior 

~~_.OF TO]~M. 56.4 31.3 10.8 1.0 0.5 

45.7 21.2 12.5 9.5 6.7 4.4 

J~=~L~O~,J.JYlENT 10,834 4,698 7,841 9,304 



Suite 3500 One Shell Square New Orleans, LA 70139-3599 
REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN 
The Members of the St. Tammany Parish School Board Covington, Louisiana: We have audited the financial statements of St. Tammany Parish School Board (the School Board), as of and for the )'ear ended June 30, 1997, and have issued our report thereon dated November 7, 1997. We comtucted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Comnliance 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether School Board's financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. nlernal Control Over Financial Renortin~ In planning and performing our audit, we considered School Board's internal control over financial reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control over financial reporting. Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting would not necessarily disclose all mailers in the internal control over financial reporting that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements in amounts that would be material in relation to the: financial statements being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned function, s. We noted no matters involving the internal control over financial reporting and its operation that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, we noted other matters involving the internal control over financial reporting that we have reported to management of the School Board in a separate letter dated November 7, 1997. 



 



KPMG Peat Marwick LLP Suite 3500 One Shell Square New Orleans. LA 70139-3599 
REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
The Members of the St. Tammany Parish School Board Covington, Louisiana: 
We have audited the compliance of St. Tammany Parish School Board (the School Board), with the types of compliance requirements described in the l]. S. Office of Managemer~t and Budget (OMB) Circular A- 133 Compliance Supplement that me applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 1997. The School Board's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditors' results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each of its major federal programs is the responsibility of School Board's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on School Board's compliance based on our audit. We conducted our audit of compliance in aecordance with generally accepted auditing standards; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, andNon-Profit Organizations. Tho~ standards and OMB Circular A- 133 require that we plan and perform tile audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about School Board's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessal3' in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination on School Board's compliance with those requirernents. 
In our opinion, School Board complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to above that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 1997. However, the results of our auditing procedures disclosed instances of noncompliance with those requirements that are required to be reported in accordance with OMB Circular A-133 and which are described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as items 97-1 and 97-2. nternal Control Over Cnmnllnnee The management of School Board is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to federal programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered School Board's internal control over compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major 
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federal program in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133. We noted certain matlers involving the internal control over compliance and its operation that we consider to be reportable conditions. Reportable conditions involve matters coming to our attention relating to significant deficiencies in the design or operation of the internal control over compliance that, in our judgment, could adversely affect School Board's ability to administer a major federal program in accordance with applicable requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants. Reportable conditions are described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as items 97-1 and 97-2. A material weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that. noncompliance with applicable requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants that would be material in relation to a major federal program being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in tile normal course of performing their assigned functions. Our consideration of the internal control over compliance would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control that might be reportable conditions and, accordingly, would not necessarily disclose all reportable conditions that are also considered to be material weaknesses. However, we believe none of the reportable conditions described above is a material weakness. Schedule of F.xnenditures of Federal Awards We have audited the general-purpose financial statements of School Board as of and for the year ended June 30, 1997, and have issued our report thereon dated November 7, 1997. Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general-purpose financial statements taken as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by OMB Cireular A-133 and is not a required part of the general- purpose financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the general-purpose financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the general-purpose financial statements taken as a whole. This report is intended for the information of the School Board, the School Board's management and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities, such as the State of Louisiana. However, this report is a matter of public record and its distribution is not limited. 
November 7, 1997 



Federal Grantor/ Pass-Through Grantor/ ~P r~g r~J~_m_,~ 
Passed Through Louisiana Department of Agriculture: Food Distribution Program Passed Through Louisiana Department of Education: School Breakfast program National School [_unch Program 

ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD COVINGTON, LOUISIANA Schedule of Federal Awards For the Year Ended June 30, 1997 Pass Through Grantor C~J~.J~Lrtll~ Award Numb~ 
"10.550 NONE $536,009 
"10.553 "10.555 NONE NONE Passed Through Leuisiana Office of Forestry: Teacher Resource in Environmental Education 10.664 CFMS 514019 Total United States Department Of Agricutture 

Passed Through Louisiana Department of Education: Adult Education-State Administered Program mproving America's School Act (IASA) Title h Helping Disadvantaged Children Meet High Standards 

Title I1: Dwight D. Eisenhower Professional Development Program 
Title IV: Safe and Drug Free School and Communities 
Title Vl: Innovative Education Program Strategies 
Total IASA ndividuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA): Part B-Regular Education 

84.002 NONE "84.010 "84.010 "84.010 "84.010 84.216 84.216 "84.010 
B4.281 84.281 84,281 84.281 
84.186A 84.186A 84.166A 84.186A 84.298 84.298 84.298 84.298 
*84.027 *84.027 *84.027 

97-1ASA-52 96-063-52 96-063-52C/O 95-663-62C/O 97 Capital 96 Capital School Support 
97-]ASA-52-2 28-96-5052oll 28-96-5052-11(3/O 28-95-5052-11C/O 
97-1ASA-52-.4 28-96-7052D 2~96-7052DCIO 28-95-7052DC/G 97-1ASA-52-6 28-96-0052-6 28-96-6052-6C/O 28-95-0052-2C/G 
97-FT-52 96-FT-52 96-FTC-62 

855,652 2,915,314 
480 4.307.455 

3,559,759 109,280 382,445 15,150 53,430 631 6,509 4.127.2~ 104,999 2,710 23,751 45O 
114,773 1,581 75,078 30 ,~=1A62 133,576 4,100 18,358 55O 156.584 ~697~160 
1,345.116 12,408 13.OSl :~37~L575 



Federal Grantor/ Pass-Through Grantor/ P rog r~rD Najrn~ Preschoo~ Education 
Pad H-Infant/]ocldler Total IDEA Vocalienal Education: Basic Grants to States Goals 20O0-Educate America Act (EAA): Education Systemic Improvement Louisiana Charter School Initiative Total EAA Total United States Departrnent of Education 

g FJ2/~t~zmb~ 84.173 84.173 
84.181 84.181 

Pass Through Grantor 
Schedule 41 

97-PF-52 96-PF-52 
96-CIT3-52 95-CIT3-52 

84.048 28-97-52-2B/BG 
84.276 84,828A 9276A0018 5282A50011-96 

$216,474 23529~ 2,171 11,004 13,175 
Z46~5g 
197,182 4,687 
~6~5~460 

Passed Through Louisiana Department of Education, Passed Through Delgado Community College: School to Work 17.249 NONE 5,878 Passed Through Louisiana Technical College - Sullivan Campus: School toWork 17.249 NONE Total United States Department of Labor Passed Through Louisiana's Office of the Lieutenant Governor: Learn and Serve America 94.004 22S95 Direct Program - Presidential Award for Excellence in Science and Mathematics Teaching 47.066 
Passed Through the Louisiana Department of Education: Starting Points Program Passed Through the Louisiana Department of Social Servia,s: GRADS/SAFE Tota~ United States Department of Health and Human Development Air Force - JROTC Army - JROTC Marines - JROTC Navy - JROTC Total United States De,c~artment of Defense TOTAL FEDERAL AWARDS ' Denotes a major program .C~ee accompanying Notes to Schedule of Federal Awards 

93.037 
93.672 
NONE NONE NONE NONE 
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NONE 
NONE 
NONE NONE NONE NONE 

61,927 
72.5~Z 52,801 41,636 35,878 :t26.525 255J~Q 



i. GenerAl 
St. T-~ny Parish School Board Covington, Louisiana Notes to Schedule of Federal Awards June 30. 1997 

The accompanying Schedule of Federal Awards presents the activity of all federal awards programs of the St. Tammany Parish School Board (the School Board). The School Bc)ard reporting entity is defined in note 1 to the general purpose financial statements for the year ended June 30, 1997. All federal awards received directly from federal agencies is included on the schedule as well as federal awards passed through other government agencies. The following programs are considered major federal programs of the School Board: IASA Title I, IDEA Part B, USDA Commoditles-Food Distribution, and National School Lunch and School Breakfast. 2. Basis of Accountinq Schedule of Federal Awards is presented using the modified accrual basis of accounting, which is described in note 1 to the School Board's general purpose financial statements for the year ended June 30, 1997. Commodities received, which are non-cash revenue are valued at prices provided by the U.S. Department of Agriculture. Any received but unused commodities are recorded as deferred revenue until used. 3. Relationship to General Purpose F~nancial Statements 

4 

Federal award revenues are reported in the School Board's general purpose financial statements as follows: 
General Fund Special Revenue Fund Total 

$267,077 11.067.055 
Amounts reported in the Schedule of Federal Awards agree with the amounts reported in the related federal financial reports, except for the amotmts in reports submitted as of a date subsecg,ent to June 30, 1997, which will differ from the schedule by the amount of encumbrances as of June 30, 1997, liquidated to the dates of the reports. 
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD Covington, Louisiana Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs Year Ended June 30, 1997 (1) Summary of Auditors' Results (a) 
(b) 
~ (d) 
(e) (f) 

Schedule 42 

The type of report issued on the general-purpose financial statements: unqualified _q~ini_~ Reportable conditions in internal control were disclosed by the audit of the Financia Statements: no Material weaknesses: no 
Noncompliance which is material to the general-purpose financial statements: no Reportable conditions in internal control over major programs: no Materia weaknesses: no The type of report issued on compliance for major programs: Any audit findings which are required to reported under section. 510(a) of OMB Circular A-133: Major programs: United States Department of Agriculture: Food Distribution Program (CFDA Number 10.550) National School Breakfast Program (CFDA Number 10.553) National School Lunch Program (CFDA Number 10.555) United States Department of Education: Improving America's School Act (IASA) - Title I (CFDA Number 84:010) Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA) - Part B-Regular Education (CFI)A Number 84.027). (h) Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type ][3 programs: $i.40~024 Auditee qualified as a low-risk auditee under Section. 530 of OIvlB Circular A-133 

(2), Findings Relating to the Financial Statements Reported in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards': None (continued) 



(3) Findings and Questioned Costs relating to Federal Awards Item 97-1 This finding affects each major program Federal program and specific federal award identification: CFDA Title: National School Breakfast Program (herein referred to as School Breakfast) CFDA Number 10.553 Federal award number: None CFDA Title: National School Lunch Program (herein referred to as School Lunch) CFDA Number 10.555 Federal award number: None Year: 1997 Name of federal agency: United States Department of Agriculture Name of the applicable pass-through entity: Louisiana Department of Education CFDA Title: Improving America's School Act (1ASA) - Title I (herein referred to as Title I) CFDA Numher 84:010 Federal award number: 97-1ASA-52, 96,063-52C/0 as listed in the Schedule of Federal Awards Year: 1997 Name of federal agency: United States Department of Education Name of the applicable pass-through entity: Louisiana Department of Education CFDA Title: Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA): Part 13-Regular Education (herein referred to as IDEA) CFDA Number 84:027 Federal award number: 97-FT-52 Year: 1997 Name of fede, ral agency: United States Department of Education Name of the applicable pass-through entity: Louisiana Department of Education Criteria or a7~ecific requirement upon which lhe finding is based, including statutory, regulatory, or other citation - OMB Circular A-gT, "Cost Principles for State, Local and Indian Tribal Governments," Attachment B, Section 1 l(h) (3), which states that "Where employees are expected to work solely on a single Federal award or cost objective, charges for their salaries and wages will be supported by periodic certifications lhat the employees worked solely on that program for the period covered by the certification. These cerlificatious will be prepared at least semi-annually and will be signed by the employee or supervisory official having first hand knowledge of the work performed by the employee." The condition found, including facts that support the deficiency identified in the finding. Certification in accordance with the above provisions were not obtained semi-annually for each of the above programs. While controls over existence and accuracy of payroll charges are in place, including the review of monthly payroll charges, the forms regarding the actual certifications from employees/supervisory officials having first hand knowledge of the work performed were not obtained. (con~,inued) 
].40 



Identification of questioned costs and how they are computea~ Questioned costs, if any, cannot be dete~znined. The program did receive services from employee.,;. Other controls are in place to verify payroll costs, however certifications were not obtained. Information to provide proper perspective for judging the prevalence and consequences of the finding, such as whether the finding represents an isolated instance or a systemic problem. Where appropriate, instances identified should be related to the total population and the number tested and be quantified in terms of dollar value. The finding is a sys~temic problem and applies "to the salary costs of the related programs. The possible asserted effect to provide sufficient information to the auditee and the Federal agency (or pass-through entity in the case of a subrecipient) to permit them to determine the cause and effect to facilitote prompt and proper corrective action. Salary costs could be charged to a program for personnel who did not provide program services. Recommendations to prevent future occurrences of the deficiency identified in the finding. The School Board should implement a polk:), requiring all Federal program directors to maintain compliance with the applicable sections of A-87. In addition, each Federal program director should establish a policy and a procedure to obtain the required certifications in the appropriate formats and establish a control (for example, a reporting control to the Finance Department stating that all certifications were completed). Views of responsible officials of the attditee when there is disagreement with the finding, to the extent practical None Item 97-2 Federal program and specific federal award identification: CFDA Title: National School Breakfast Program (herein referred to as School Breakfast) CFDA Number 10.553 CFDA Title: National School Lunch Program (herein referred to as School Lunch) Federal award number: None CFDA Number 10.555 Federal award number: None Year: 1997 Name of federal agency: United States Department of Agriculture Name of the applicable pass-through entity: Louisiana Department of Education Criteria or sT;ecific requirement upon which the finding is based, including statutory, regulatory, or other citation - OMB Circular A-87, "Cost Principles for State, Local and Indian Tribal Governments," Attachment B, Section 25(d)(3), which states that "Contributions to reserves must be based on sound actuarial principles using historical experience and reasonable assumptions. Reserve levels must be analyzed and updated at least biennially for each major risk being insured and take into account any reinsurance, (continued) 
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coinsurance, etc. Reserve levels related to employee-related coverages will normally be limited to the value of claims (a) submitted and adjudicated but not paid, (b) submitted but not adjudicated, and (c) incurred but not submiued. Reserve levels in e);cess of the amounts based on the above must be identified and justified in the cost allocation plan or indirect cost rate proposal" The condition found, including facts that support the deficiency identified in the finding. The School Lunch and School Breakfast programs, participate in the Internal Service Fund- Workers' Compensation program, which is a self-insured fund. Current rates, charged by classification of employee, are based on a 1987 actuarial study. The rates were increased evenly among classifications by 15% to support the Internal Service Fund's workers' compensation expenditures. An actuary study does not support current rates being charged. Identification of questioned costs and how they are computed. Questioned costs, if any, cannot be determined as insurance was provided and the impact of an actuarial study could result in higher or lower rates than the current rates being used by the School Board. Information to provide proper perspective Jot judging the prevalence and consequences of the finding, such as whether the finding represents an isolated instance or a systemic problem. Where appropriate, instances identified should be related to the total population and the number tested and be quantified in terms of dollar value. The finding is a systemic problem and applies to tile salary costs of the related programs. The possible asserted effect to provide sufficient information to the auditee and the Federal agency (or pass-through entity in the case of a subrecipienO to permit them to determine the cause and ~fJect to facilitate prompt and proper corrective action. Workers' compensation rates charged to the Federal programs may not be either lower or higher based on an actuarial study. Recommendations to prevent future occurrences of the deficiency identified in the finding. The School Board should obtain biennially an current actuarial assessment of the rates to be charged as well as the level of accumulated reserves necessary and establish procedures to ensure updates to the actuarial assessment ar~~ performed timely. Views of responsible officials of the auditee when there is disagreement with the finding, to the extent practical None 
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J~PMG Peat Marwick LLP Suite 3500 One Shell Square New O eans. LA 70139-3599 

November 7, 1997 
The Members of the Board St. Tammany Parish School Board 

S-J tT-'~ ', 5 L',', ~2: 

We have audited the general purpose financial stalements of St. Tammany Parish School Board as of and for the year ended June 30, 1997, and have issued a report thereon dated November 7, 1997. Unde~ generally accepted auditing standards, we are providing you with the attached information related to the conduct of our audit. 
This information is intended solely for the use of the Board and management and should not be used for any other purpose. Very truly yours, 



ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
June 30, 1997 

Our Responsibility Under Generally Accepted Auditing Standards Our responsibility under generally accepted auditing standards is to express an opinion on the general purpose financial statements of St. Tammany Parish School Board (the School Board) as of and for the year ended June 30, ] 997 based on our audit. In carrying out this responsibility, we assessed the risk that the financial statements may contain a material misstatement, either intentional or unintentional, and designed and conducted our audit to provide reasonable, not absolute, assurance of detecting: misstatements that are material to the financial statements. In addition, we considered the internal control structure of the School Board to gain a basic understanding of the accounting system in order to design an effective and efficient audit approach, although not for the purpose of providing specific assurance on the internal control structure. Significant Accounting Policies The significant accounting policies used by the School Board are described in the "Summary cd Significant Accounting Policies" note to the financial statements. We noted no transactions entered into by the School Board during the year that were both significant and unusual, and of which, under professional standards, we are required to inform you, or transactions for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. Management Judgments and Accounting Estimates Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based upon management's current judgments. Those judgments are normally based on knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future events. Certain accountiug estimates are particularly sensitive because of the significance of the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ markedly from management's current judgments. We considered the calculation of self-insurance loss claim provisions and liabilities to bc estimates that are significant due to the amount of the estimate. Based on the testwork performed, we conclude that management's estimate appears reasonable at June 30, 1997. Significant Audit Adjustments We proposed no significant audit adjustments to the financial statements that could, in our judgment, either individually or in the aggregate, have a significant effect on the School Board's financial reporting process. Other Information in Documents Containing Andited Financial Statements Our responsibility for other information in docuraents containing the School Board's financial statements and our report thereon does not extend beyond the financial information identified in our report, and we have no obligation to perform any procedures to corroborate other information contained in these documents. We: have read the other information included in the School Board's annual comprehenswe financial report and noted no matters that came to our attention that could cause us to believe that such 



nformation, or its manner of presentation, was materially inconsistent with the information, or manner of ts presentation, appearing in the financial statements. Disagreements With Management 
There were no disagreements with management on financial accounting and reporting matters which. Jf not satisfactorily resolved, would have caused a modification of our report on the School Board's 1997 financial statements. Consultation With Other Accountants To the best of our knowledge, managemeut has not consulted with or obtained an opinion, written or oral. from other independent accountants during the past year which were subject to the requirements of Statement on Auditing Standards No. 50, "Reporting on the Application of Accounting Principles." Major Issues Discussed With Management Prior to Retention There have been no major issues discussed with management prior to our retention as your auditors Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit 
We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing our audit 



Item 97-i 
St. Tammany Parish School Board ~ Single Audit Corrective Action Plan June 30, 1997 

The School Board will conduct a mandatory training session for all supervisors who administer programs that receive Federal funds. The Business Affairs Department will develop a form to be completed semi-annually by each employee working solely on a single Federal award certifying that he/she actually worked solely on that Federal award. Each supervisor will receive the employee certifications and once all are received, the supervisor shall certify to the Business Affairs Department that all employee certifications applicable to his/her programs have been received and there are no discrepancies or areas of concern. AntScipat:ed Completion Date - June 30, 1998 Kesponsible Official - Ronald J. Caruso Director of Business Affairs Item 97'-2 The School Board will have an actuarial assessment of the workers' compensation rates performed during fiscal year 1998. Based on the assessments, rates will be adjusted during this fiscal year, if warranted. Additionally, the assessment will determine the level of accumulated reserves necessary to fund anticipated losses. The School Board will have the actuarial assessment performed every two yea~s. Anticipated Completion Date - June 30, 1998 Responsible Official - Ronald J. Caruso Director of Business Affairs 


